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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Members ofthe Board of Education 
Daviess County School District 
Owensboro, Kentucky 

Kentucky State Committee for School District Audits 
Frankfort, Kentucky 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Daviess County School District 
(District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the fmancial statements, which 
collectively comprise the District's basic fmancial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fmancial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
fmancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these fmancial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States; and the Kentucky Public School Districts' Audit Contract and Requirements 
prescribed by the Kentucky State Committee for School District Audits. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the fmancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
ftnancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the etfectiveness ofthe entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the fmancial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the Daviess County School District as of June 30, 2015, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash tlows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . 
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Change in Accounting Principle 

As discussed in Note 16 to the financial statements, in 2015 the District adopted new accounting 
guidance, GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting }or Pensions. Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplemelllary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison schedules, and the pension schedules on pages 3-11 and 54-61 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
fmancial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic fmancial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic fmancial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fmancial statements that collectively 
comprise the District's basic fmancial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as 
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic fmancial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund fmancial statements and the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fmancial statements. Such information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic fmancial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic fmancial statements or to the basic fmancial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Govemmellt Auditi11g Sta11dards 

In accordance with Gowmment Auditing Stcmclards, we have also issued our report dated October 9, 
2015, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant abrreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the District's internal control over tinancial reporting and compliance. 

Owensboro, Kentucky 
October 9, 2015 

~~ Cf'A. 1'->c. 



Davicss County School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 

The discussion and analysis of Daviess County School District's tinancial perfonnance provides an 
overall review of the School District's tinancial activities tor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The 
intent of this discussion and analysis is to review the School District's financial pertonnance as a whole. 
Readers should also review the basic tinancial statements and the notes to the financial statements to 
enhance their understanding of the School District's tinancial perfonnance. 

Financial Highlights 

• [n total, net position, as restated, increased $3,770,569. Net position of governmental activities, as 
restated, increased by $3,609,505, while net position of business-type activities, as restated, 
increased by $161,064. Net position was restated to adhere to a new accounting standard pertaining 
to pension liabilities. 

• General revenues accounted for $93,980,853 in revenue or 85.9% of all governmental revenues. 
Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services, grants, and contributions accounted 
tor $15,379,468 or 14.1 % of total governmental revenues of$109,360,321. 

• Total assets of governmental activities increased by $11 ,647,227. Capital assets increased by 
$5,816,505, while cash and investments increased by $6,022,588 due to the bond issue tor 
construction projects in progress. 

• The School District had $105,750,816 in expenses related to governmental activities; only 
$15,379,468 of these expenses were offset by program specific charges for services, grants, and 
contributions. General revenues (primarily local taxes and state SEEK allocations), were adequate 
to provide for these pro!>'fams. 

• Construction continued during fiscal year 2015. Projects include renovations at Daviess County 
High, Burns Middle and Daviess County Middle. 

Using the Basic Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of a series of tinancial statements and notes to those statements. These 
statements are organized so the reader can understand Daviess County School District us a tinancial 
whole. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial 
activities. 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities provide information about the activities 
of the whole School District, presenting both un aggregate view of the School District's tinances and a 
longer-term view of those tinances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For 
governmental funds, these statements tell how services were tinanced in the short-tenn, us well as what 
remains For future spending. The fund tinancial statements also look at the School District's major funds 
with all other non-major funds presented in total in one column. The major funds tor the Daviess County 
School District arc the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Construction Fund. 



Davicss County School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Reporting the School District as a \Vhole 

One of the most important questions asked about the School District is .. how did we do financially during 
20 15?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, which appear first in the School 
District's financial statements, report information on the School District as a whole and its activities in a 
way that helps answer this question. TI1ese statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual 
basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. This basis 
of accounting takes into account all of the current year's revenues and expenses regardless of when cash 
is received and paid. 

These two statements report the School District's net position and changes in that position. This change 
in net position is important because it tells the reader that, for the School District as a whole, the financial 
position of the School District has improved or diminished. However, the School District's goal is to 
provide services to our students, not to generate protits as commercial entities do. One must consider 
many other non-financial factors, such as the School District's property tax base, current property tax 
laws in Kentucky restricting revenue growth, required educational programs and other tactors. 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided into two 
distinct kinds of activities: 

Governmental Activities - most of the School District's programs and services are reported here, 
including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant, pupil transportation, and 
other activities. 

Business-Type Activities - these services are provided on a charge tor goods or services basis to 
recover all of the expenses of the goods or services provided. The School District's food service and 
after school programs are reported as business activities. 

Reporting the School District's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

The analysis of the School District's major funds begins on page 14. Fund financial reports provide 
detailed infonnation about the School District's major funds. The School District uses many funds to 
account for a multitude of financial transactions. However, these fund financial statements tocus on the 
School District's major funds. 

Governmental Funds - most of the School District's activities are reported in governmental funds, 
which tocus on how money tlows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year end available 
tor spending in future periods. These funds are reported using an accounting method called moditied 
accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash und all other tinancial assets that can readily be 
converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-tcnn view of the School 
District's general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund 
intormation helps dctenninc whcther there are more or fewer tinancial resources that can be spent in the 
ncar future to tinancc educational programs. The relationship (or diftercncc) between govcnunental 



Oaviess County School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Reporting the School District's Most Significant Funds, Continued 

activities {reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental 
funds is reconciled in the tinancial statements. 

Proprietary Funds - proprietary funds use the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; 
therefore, the statements tbr the proprietary fund will essentially match. 

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional intbrmation that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to 
the financial statements can be found on pages 23 - 53 of this report. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of 
the District, assets exceeded liabilities by $33,835,315 for Governmental Activities, and $194,159 for 
Business-Type Activities as of June 30, 2015. 

The largest portion of the District's net position retlects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land and 
improvements, buildings and improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment, and construction in 
progress) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses 
these capital assets to provide services to its students; consequently, these assets are not available for 
future spending. Although the District's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it 
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since 
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

The District's financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results of 
activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the 
depreciation of capital assets. Included for June 30, 2015, is the district's liability for the net pension 
obligation. 



Davicss County School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015 

Reporting the School District's Most Significant Funds, Continued 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis, Continued 

(Table 1) 
Net Position 

Governmental Aclivitle! Bus I ness-T)lee Activities 
2015 ~ 2015 2014 

Assets 
Current and other 

assets $ 33,557,766 $ 27,727,044 $2,473,216 $2,462,688 
Capital assets 100,964,781 95,148,27§ 939,277 930,312 

Total assets 134,522,547 1 ~2.~7~.~20 3,412,493 3,393,000 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Deferred charges on 
refunding 1,203,227 1,435,698 

Pension deferred 
outflows 2,257,787 39~,433 

Total deferred 
outflows of 
resources 3.461.014 1,435,698 398,433 

Liabilities 
Long-term liabilities 93,876,287 62,641,265 3,169,050 
Other liabilities 8,267,659 12,919,04~ 94,017 90,805 

Total liabilities 102,143,946 75,560,~Q~ 3,263,067 90,805 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

Pension deferred 
inflows 2,004,300 353,700 

Net Investment In 
capital assets 29,120,836 31,041,476 939,277 930,312 

Restricted 10,376,847 7,242,366 

Unrestricted (5,662,368} 10,466,8§~ (745,118} 2,371,883 

Total net position $ 33 835,315 $ 48 750,710 $_194159 $UQ2.J.95 

Total assets increased $11,666,720 primarily due to bond issue and new construction. 
$3,770,569. 

Total 
2015 ~ 

$ 36,030,982 $ 30,189,732 
101,904,058 96,078,588 

1~7.~3~,040 126,268,320 

1,203,227 1,435,698 

2,656,220 

3,859,447 1,435,698 

97,045,337 62,641,265 
8,361,676 13,009,848 

105,4Q7,013 75,651,113 

2,358,000 

30,060,113 31,971,788 

10,376,847 7,242,366 

(6,407,486) 12,838,751 

$=M.Q29AZ4 $_52 052.905 

Total net position increased by 



Program revenues: 
Charges for services 
Operating grants 

and contributions 
Capital grants 

and contributions 
General revenues: 

Taxes 
State aid formula 

grants 
Investment 

eamings 
Gain on sale of 

capital assets 
Miscellaneous 
State on behalf 

payments 
Transfers 
Total revenues and 

transfers 

Program expenses: 
Instruction 
Support services: 

Student 
Instructional staff 
District 

administration 
School 

administration 
Business 
Facility 

operations/ 
maintenance 

Student 
transportation 

Non-instructional 
Facility acquisition/ 

construction 
After school program 
Interest on long-

term debt 
Food service 
Total expenses and 

transfers 
Increase/decrease 

In net position 

Davicss County School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015 

(Table 2) 
Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-Tme Activities 
2015 2014 2015 ~ 

$ 576,656 $ 449,491 $ 3,468,836 $ 3,487,430 

10,564,475 10,540,816 4,621,343 4,813,632 

4,238,337 3,980,391 

35,618,921 33,126,497 

38,886,536 37,800,908 

164,957 162,019 10,644 10,552 

125,188 12,606 
345,975 327,447 

18,779,327 17,117,404 
59,949 7~.~Q4 (59,~49) (78,804) 

109,360,321 1 03,59§,~~!3 8,Q40,874 8,232,810 

63,629,594 66,173,036 

3,858,555 4,059,839 
3,601,594 3,371,081 

913,047 877,830 

6,823,094 6,504,827 
1,876,086 1,794,613 

9,259,125 7,261,360 

7,269,341 7,620,869 
888,109 851,131 

4,959,040 2,542,503 
1,030,788 1,054,700 

2,673,231 2,547,481 
6,849,022 6,928,472 

105,750,816 103,604,570 7,879,810 7,983,172 

$__3,609,505 $ (8.181} $ j 6.1,Q~ $ 2!19.638 

7 

Total 

~ 2014 

$ 4,045,492 $ 3,936,921 

15,185,818 15,354,448 

4,238,337 3,980,391 

35,618,921 33,126,497 

38,886,536 37,800,908 

175,601 172,571 

125,188 12,606 
345,975 327,447 

18,779,327 17,117,404 

117,401,19~ 111,829,193 

63,629,594 66,173,036 

3,858,555 4,059,839 
3,601,594 3,371,081 

913,047 877,830 
6,823,094 

6,504,827 
1,876,086 1,794,613 

9,259,125 7,261,360 

7,269,341 7,620,869 
888,109 851,131 

4,959,040 2,542,503 
1,030,788 1,054,700 

2,673,231 2,547,481 
6,849,022 6,928,472 

113,630,626 111,587,742 

$ 3 ZZ0.569 $ 2~1.451 



Daviess County School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2015 

Reporting the School District's Most Significant Funds, Continued 

Governmental Activities 

Instruction comprises 60.2% of governmental probrram expenses. Support services expenses make up 
31.8% of governmental expenses. Non-instructional expenses for community services total .8% of 
governmental expenses. Facilities acquisition/construction and interest accounts for the remaining 7.2% 
of the total governmental expense. 

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of prot.,rram services and the charges for services and t.,rrants 
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows, for government activities, the total cost of services and the net 
cost of services. That is, it identifies the cost of these services supported by tax revenue and unrestricted 
state entitlements. The total cost of services includes state on-behalf payments in the amount of 
$18,779,327 for2015. 

Instruction 

Support services 

Non-instructional 

Facilities acquisition/construction 

Interest on long-term debt 

(Table 3) 
Governmental Activities 

Total Cost of 
Services 

$ 63,629,594 $ 66,173,036 
33,600,842 31,490,419 

888 •. 109 851,131 
4,959,040 2,542,503 
2.673.231 2.547,481 

Net Cost of 
Services 

$55,686,592 
31,240,654 

(1 ,891) 
966,669 

2.479,324 

$58,309,724 
29,161,943 

2,342 
(1 '187,434) 
2.347.297 

Total expenses $105.1.50.816 $103.604,570 $9.0,371 .348 $88.633.872 

Business-Type Activities 

The business-type activities are food service and after school programs. These prot.,rrams had revenues of 
$8, l00,823 and expenses of $7,879,810 tbr tiscal year 2015. Of the revenues, $3,468,336 was charges 
for services, $4,621,343 was from state and federal grants, and $10,644 was from investment earnings. 
Indirect cost transfers and other transtcrs totaled $59,949. Business activities receive no support trom tax 
revenues. The School District will continue to monitor the charges and costs of these activities. If it 
becomes necessary, the School District will increase the charges tbr these activities. 

The School District's Funds 

lntbnnution about the School District's major funds begins on page 14. These funds are accounted tor 
using the modi tied accrual basis of accounting. All governmental tunds had total revenues and other 
tinnncing sources of $122,441,988 ami expenditures of $117,747,788. Net changes in tund balances for 
the year were most signiticunt tor the Construction Fund totaling $2,958,232. The General Fund's fund 
balance increased by $1,559,719. 



Daviess County School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Reporting the School District's Most Significant Funds, Continued 

General Fund~Budget Highlights 

The increase in General Fund was due to an increase in state aid and taxes. The increase in Construction 
Fund was due to a bond issue for construction projects in progress at year end. 

The School District's budget is prepared according to Kentucky law and is based on accounting for 
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The most significant 
budgeted fund is the General Fund. The State Department of Education requires a zero~based budget with 
any budgeted remaining fund balance shown as a contingency expense in the budget process. 

A variance comparison is presented on page 54 between the final budgeted amounts and the actual 
(GAAP Basis) amounts. The General Fund revenues were budgeted at $87,350,060, with actual amounts 
of $89,623,466. Budgeted expenditures of $102,057,424 compare with actual expenditures of 
$89,341,509, a difference of $12,715,915. The source of the expense budget variances is related to 
amounts budgeted for contingencies. Budgeted other financing sources was $1,027,609, with actual 
financing sources of$1,277,762. The net increase in the General Fund balance is $1,559,719. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

At the end of fiscal year 2015, the School District had $10 l ,904,058 invested in land, buildings, 
equipment and construction in progress, $100,964,781 in governmental activities, and $939,277 in 
business-type activities. Table 4 shows tiscal year 2015 balances compared to 2014. 

Governmental Activities 
2015 ~ 

Land $ 4,244,370 $ 3,484,809 

Land improvements 712,321 790,362 
Buildings and 

improvements 79,139,302 78,935,067 
Technology 

equipment 3,142,167 3,462,221 

Vehicles 4 ,018,003 3,882,220 

(Table 4) 
Capital Assets at June 30 

(Net of Depreciation) 

Business· Type Activities 
~ 2014 

$ $ 
7,726 8,499 

86,703 63,892 

19,453 

Total 
2015 2014 

$ 4,244,370 $ 3,484,809 

720,047 796,861 

79,139,302 78,935,067 

3,226,670 3,526,113 

4,037,456 3,882,220 



Daviess County School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration, Continued 

Capital Assets, Continued 

Governmental Activities 
2015 2014 

General equipment 1,175,272 1,234,139 
Construction in 

progress 8.533.346 3.359.458 

Total $:100,964,Z8j $ 95,j 48,216 

(Table 4) 
Capital Assets at June 30 

(Net of Depreciation), Continued 

Business-Type Activities 
2015 2014 

825,395 857,921 

$ 9:39,2ZZ $ 9JQ.Jj2 

Total 
~ 2014 

2,000,667 2,092,060 

8.533.346 3.359.458 

$101.904.058 $96.078.588 

The increase in capital assets is primarily due to construction projects in probrress. 

Debt 

At June 30,2015, the School District had $72,581,000 in bonds outstanding, ofwhich $1,295,174 are to 
be paid from the KSFCC funding provided by the State of Kentucky. A total of $4,725,000 is due within 
one year. 

At June 30, 2014, the School District had $64,660,000 in bonds outstanding, of which $141,542 was to be 
paid from the KSFCC funding provided by the State of Kentucky. 

District Challenges for the Future 

Daviess County School District's overall financial status remains in a safe financial position. The District 
is financially stable, but at risk due to continued inadequate state funding. This is the result of three 
factors: the general decrease in the percentage of state funding for K-12 public education; the rising cost 
of employer retirement expense; and the related state pension fund financial challenge. 

A challenge facing our School District is that of inadequate state funding. In recent years, the state has 
placed an assortment of mandates on Kentucky school districts, yet adequate funding tor those mandates 
has not been provided. This practice, over time, will place a severe strain on the District's resources. 
The District maintains a contingency plan to deal with state funding shortfalls, but this will only be 
effective tor the short-tenn. A long-term solution at the state level must be dctennined and enacted by 
the state legislature to ensure adequate tt.mding tor Kentucky's public school districts. To balance state 
funding shortfalls, increased pressure has been placed on local boards of education to increase taxes, 
placing a hardship on local school districts and local taxpayers. 

lfl 



Daviess County School District 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 

District Challenges for the Future, Continued 

Kentucky's constitution clearly directs public education as the State's responsibility. Fiscally speaking, 
the State must address inadequate school funding. Should the State fail to proactively respond to this 
issue, the potential exists tor a state-wide lawsuit as evidenced by the Kentucky Education Refonn Act 
(KERA) that occurred in 1990. While KERA ushered in sweeping reform for school accountability, the 
lawsuit was based on the premise of inadequate state funding tor Kentucky's public schools. TI1e 
Kentucky Supreme Court sided with the school districts in that case, ordering the Legislature to remedy 
inadequate and inequitable school funding. 

A second financial risk facing Daviess County Public Schools is the rising retirement/pension costs and 
also the financial instability in the state pension fund. The employer matching percentage has more than 
doubled over the last seven-year period for the support personnel. Additionally, Kentucky school boards 
began contributing to the Kentucky Teachers Retirement System (KTRS) for the first time ever in FY 
20 II and this continued to increase in FY 2015. School boards began contributing at a rate of 0 .25%, up 
to a maximum amount of 3.0%, phased-in over a six-year period in an effort to stabilize the KTRS 
medical fund. The KTRS rate will increase an additional 0. 75% in FY 20 I6 and results in total new, 
annual estimated expense of $1 .2 million once fully implemented in FY 2016. Legislation was approved 
in the General Assembly that forbids the state from continuing to borrow trom the KTRS pension fund to 
meet the state's pension obligation. No additional state funding has been appropriated to offset this rising 
cost and the District has been forced to increase local funding to provide the necessary revenue to offset 
the unavoidable, mandated cost increases. Further, instability in the state pension fund is a large financial 
concern for the state's budget and if left unresolved, could result in negative financial consequences to 
Kentucky's public school districts. 

With careful planning and monitoring of our finances, the Daviess County School District's goals are to 
continue to provide a quality education for our students and to secure a positive tinancial future for the 
School District. 

Contacting the School District's Financial Management 

TI1is tinancial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a general 
overview of the School District's tinunces and to show the School District's accountability for the money 
it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, contact Matthew 
Robbins, Assistant Superintendent of Finance and Operations, at Daviess County Public Schools, 1622 
Southeastern Parkway, P .0. Box 21510, Owensboro, KY 42304-1510, or email at mrobbins@dcps.org. 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 

Investments 
Accounl<> receivable: 

Taxes 
Other 
Due from other governments 

Due from tiduciary funds 
Inventory 
Prepaids and other current assets 
Capital asseL~. net 

Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred charges on refunding 
Pension deferred outflows 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries and benefits 
Payroll withholdings 
Accrued interest payable 
Unearned revenue 
Long-term liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Totnllinbilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension deterred inflows 

NET POSITION 
Nt:t investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 
Other 
rcchnology 

Unrestricted 

Totnlnct position 

June 30, 2015 

Governmental 
Activities 

26,905,426 $ 
4,886,168 

1,136,580 
124,572 
139,714 
15,922 

284,325 
65,059 

100,964,781 

134,522.547 

1,203,227 
2,257,787 

3,461,014 

606,231 
3,942,885 
I ,416,160 

597,349 
1,705,034 

5,948,650 
87,927,637 

102,143,946 

2,004,300 

29,120,836 

2,247,167 
8,027,242 

102,438 
(5,662,368) 

33,835.315 $ 

\cl! ~u iC!i tH l·tu;tnd:d Stalcmcnts 

11 

Business-Type 
Activities 

2,180,361 

9,801 
168,869 

I 14,185 

939,277 

3,412,493 

398,433 

398,433 

1,364 

92,653 

3,169,050 

3,263,067 

353,700 

939,277 

(745,118) 

194,159 

Total 

$ 29,085,787 
4,886,168 

1,136,580 
134,373 
308,583 

15,922 
398,510 
65,059 

101,904,058 

137,935,040 

1,203,227 
2,656,220 

3,859,447 

607,595 
3,942,885 
1,416,160 

597,349 
1,797,687 

5,948,650 
91,096,687 

I 05,407,0 13 

2.358,000 

30,060,113 

2,2~7.167 

8,027,242 
102,438 

(ll.-!07,486) 

$ 34,029,474 



[un-:llf•lh P[~ \.:131Jh 

Go' c:mm.:malacll\lll.:s: 
lnslruCIHm 
Suppun >c:n·•.:cs: 

Slt~t!c:nl 

lnstrucllonal >I~ ll" 
Dmn.:1 adrnmtSir.IIIOn 
Sch~l adnnm>lrJuon 
Bu. me:,; 

I' lam <» pcrJIIOn and m••mcnancc: 
Studo:nl lrJnspvn•uon 

(' \llniiiUIIII)' ~1'\ ICt:S 

Nc\\ buildm!l construcuon 
Build•n!: r~on.>' auons ao:khuon> 
lnc~-rc>l on long-1cnn habtl111~~ 

T oul !lUI c:mmen1al acu' mcs 

Uusme>v l) )'\' a ell\ all~':>. 
Foo.l sen h7c 
Allo:r >chuol program 

TotJI bu~mc::.S·I)f'C acm 111~-s 

To1al d1stn~1 

0,\ \'lESS COU:"IiT\" SCIIOOL OISTRJCT 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Yeo~r Endcl June: 30, :!015 

Pro~;;l':lm Rc:' cnuc::. 
Opcralinll Cap11al 

Charo;c::. lor Grdnls and Gran1s and 
E'(!O:RSC:S Sen1ccs Conuibuuons ConlribuiiOII> 

s 63,6:!9,594 s 336,716 

3,~58,55) 

3,601,594 
913,047 

6,823 ,09~ 

1,876,0S6 
9,259,125 30.~35 

7,169,341 209,105 
!11!8,109 

2,570,660 
2,38!1,380 
2.673.231 

105.7SO,MI6 )76,656 

6,!149,0~2 2,35 7,55~ 

1,03U,7:il! 1,111,2!1~ 

1,879,glo 3,468,836 

s I IJ .630,626 $ 4.~5.-19~ 

Gcno:rdl rc1 cnu~'l> : 

Prupcn)" 1axes 
Uuht> ta~Cli 
Stale a1d fom1ula !lr.lnls 
On·bchalf pa)mcnts 

lmc:stm<:nl c:amm1:5 
Gam on sale of capual asse1> 
M•scc:IIJno:ous 

Tran>fcrs 

TOial~:~-n=l rc:\c:nucs and tr.msli:rs 

Chan};c m nct posillon 

Net posauon, June 30, ~0 14, rcsiOI<-"<1 

Net po>IIIOn, June 3U, 20 I 5 

s 7,554,:!27 s 

1,154,9110 
618,573 

\0,975 

1,496 

33-1,:!24 
890,000 

IU.Sb-1.·175 

4,590,054 
31,2!19 

-1.6~1.343 

s IS,IK5.81!! s 

S-.1.: h.•~ ~· fr.aw ........ SUWAAU 
I) 

52,059 

3,'J9l,J71 
193,907 

4,:!3SJ37 

-1,:!31!,337 

N~1 IE~p.:n..:) Rc1 rnue and 
Ch"nli.: tn 1'<.:1 Ptnit10n 

Go1.:mm.:n1al Busmes~-Ty)l\' 
Acll\'lllt:S A.:unuc:s To1al 

s (55,6~6,592) s (55,6!16,59:!) 

(2,703,575) (:!, 703,575) 
(:!,983,021) (2,'1!13,0:!1 l 

(913,047) (913,047) 
(6,M\2,119J IM1:!,119l 
(l,t!76,0g6) ( 1,876,086) 
(9,.226,794) (9,2.26,794) 

(6.7.26,012} (6,726,01:!) 

U91 1,891 
(2,570,660) (2,570,660) 
1,603,991 1,603,991 

(:!,·179.3241 f2.479.324) 

C'XI,371,34!i) l'J0,371.34lS) 

s 9!!,51!6 911,5~6 

111.783 111.7!!3 

210.369 210.36'.1 

(90,371,348) :!IU,369 ]90,1&0,'179) 

31,199,595 31,199,595 
-1,419,3~6 4,419,3:!6 

3!1,886,536 3!1,81!6,536 
18,779,327 18,779,327 

164.957 IO,!H-1 175,601 
125,11lll 125, 1!1!1 
3-15,975 345.975 

59,94'J (59,9~91 

93,'J~0.853 (49.305) 93,'J31.541l 

3,609,505 161.064 3,770.5b9 

30,:!~5.810 33,095 3u.:!5H,90S 

s 3l.ll35.315 $ 194.159 s J.l.0~9.-174 



D,\ VIESS COUNTY SCIIOOL DISTRICT 

ASSETS 
C'ash and cash L't]Uivalents .$ 
Investments 
;\ ccou nts rl.>cci vuble: 

Taxes 
OthL'I' 
Due from oth\.,. goVL'!'Ilmcnts 

Due !Tum oth\.'1' tunds 
Inventory 
PrL"Paitl ex pcnscs 

Total assets $ 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 

Due to otlu.:r funds 
Accru\.'1..1 salaries and b~:nctits 
Payroll withholdings 
Uru .. 'llm\.'tl revenue 

Tota11iabi1itics 

Dcti.'l"r\.'tl inflows of resources: 
Unavailable revenue - delinquent property taxes 

Fund balances: 
Nonspcmlab le 
Restricted 
C'ommittl'tl 
AssignL'tl 
UnassignL'tl 

Total fund balancL'S 

Totulllubllltl~s, tlcf~rr~d lnnows of r~sourc:c:s, 
:and fund b:~lanc:cs $ 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

June 30, 2015 

Spl.>cial 
General Rcwnuc 

Fund Fund 

14.592,1)78 $ 1,585.650 
4,886,161! 

I,IJ(J,5!10 
111,112 43,460 
32,450 82.1!81 
3,500 6,000 

284,325 
34,721 

21,050,934 $ 1,717,991 

124,301 $ 22,219 

3,942,885 
1,416,160 

Ill ,700 1,593,334 

5.595,046 1.615.553 

216.414 

284,325 
102.438 

217,036 
1,021,861 2(),879 

13,71(1,252 (29,879) 

I 5,239,474 1112.438 

21.050,934 $ 1,717.1l1JI 

'iL·c !'-ll\C~"S Itt I Ultlnt.:•;.l Sllltuu:nu 
II 

Construction 
Fund 

$ 9,1146,139 

$ (),()46.139 

$ 459.711 

459,711 

8,586,421! 

1!,586,428 

$ 1).()4(l,l 39 

Nonmnjnr Tutal 
Governmental Governmental 

Funds Funds 

$ 1.681,559 $ 26,905,426 
4Jil!6.161! 

1.136,580 
124,572 
115.331 

6,422 15,922 
284.325 
34,721 

$ 1,687.981 $ 33,503,045 

$ $ 606,231 

3,942,885 
1.416,160 
I, 705,034 

7,670.310 

216,414 

284,325 
1,6!1 7,98 J 10.3 76,!!4 7 

217,036 
1,051.7-10 

13,686,3 73 

1.6!17,91! I 25,616.321 

'II 1,687.'181 $ 33.503,045 



OA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2015 

Total fund balances- governmental funds 

Amounts rep011ed tbr governmental activities in the statement of 

net position are difTerent because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not tinancial 
resources, and, therefore, are not reported in the funds: 

Certain assets are not available to pay for current 
period expenditures: 

BAB interest subsidy receivable 

Accrued interest receivable 
Taxes receivable 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current 
period, and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in 

governmental funds: 
Bonds payable 
Issuance premiums 
Issuance discounts 
Deferred charges on refunding 

Capital lease obligations 
KSBIT assessment 
Compensated absences 
Nt:t pension liability 
Accrued interest payable 

Certain amounts related to the net pension liability are not 
reported in the governmental funds, but are deferTed in 
the statement of net position: 

Pension dettmed outtlows 

Pension deferred intlows 

Net position of governmental activities 

'i~.: Nul~s In [ ll lo lllda[ 'ilnlclll~llls 

15 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 25,616,321 

100,964,781 

24,383 

30,338 
216,414 271,135 

(72,581,000) 

(31,610) 
1,029,157 
1,203,227 

(l ,463, 719) 
( 110,092) 

(2,761,073) 
( 17,957,950) 

(597,349) (93,270,409) 

2,257,787 
(2,004,300) 253,487 

'G 33,835,315 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCJIOOL DISTRICT 

STArEMENTOF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CUANGES IN FUND IHL\NCES 

Revcnut:s: 
Property taXl'S $ 
Utility t:txcs 
Tuition um.lli:cs 
Earnings un investments 
Other local revenue 
State ~tid 
fl'tleral aid 

Total revenues 

l!.qlcnuiturcs: 
Instruction 
Support s• . .-rviccs: 

Student 
lnstructiuruJI ~tafT 
District administration 
School administration 
Business 
Phmt operation ami maintenance 
Student transportal inn 

Community scrvicl'S 
New building construction 
Building renovutinns I additions 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 
Bond issuuncc custs 

fnlal C:t[!cnditures 

~tess (deficiency) uf rcv..:nu-.-s 
uver c:tpcnuirurL'S 

Other financing snun.:cs (uses): 
l'mcl't.'t!S fnun sale nf capirul usscls 
PrtlCl't.'lls fmm issunnce ofbunus 
PniCI.'Cds frnm issuunce uf c.1piral leases 
Rclunding bnn!ls is~uL'll 
Payment In bunu rclunding escruw 
Discount un bonds rssul'tl 
Pfl'lmum on bonds i !l~u~'\1 

OrcrJting lranslcr.; in 
Orerating trans li:rs uut 

rot:tl urher liu,mdng suurc1.'S (uses l 

Net change in limu h.11unccs 

fund balance, June Jn. 21114 

Fund balance, June }0, 2015 '5 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Y t:ar Em.l!:d June 30, :!0 I 5 

Spt:ciul 
GcnerJI Revenue 

Fund Fund 

:!6.214,34!1 $ 
4,41 <),3:26 

87,146 
130,1)49 
522,572 411,·B7 

57,794,604 4.242,013 
45.!,S21 5,867,171 

81),623,466 10,520,621 

5!1,203,078 9,143,750 

3,1911,707 700,45!1 
3,312.307 220,793 

!1411,117 
6,!191,032 10,975 
1,952,013 
7,692,264 1,496 
7,243,991 3H,224 

XIJO,OOO 

89.341.509 11 .30 1,696 

:?81,957 (781 ,075) 

34,305 

738.278 

1,344,:!91 1139,712 
(1139,7 12) 

1.277.762 113'1.712 

1,559,71') 58,637 

IJ.(l7'1, 755 -l.l,Htll 

I 5.23').4 74 s 111:?,4.111 

,,,. So4n lu I iU.liMJI St,Jh,,l'tle11CJ 

II• 

s 

Nntunajor 
Construct inn Gnvcrnmcntol 

Fund Funds 

s $ 4,996,900 

20,1!!16 5,000 
213,712 

3.609,099 
IS9.2S3 

20,!1!16 9,013,964 

100,571 

1)1),764 

2.567,160 3.500 
7,582.210 

4,490,000 
2,158,914 

102,464 

10.251,834 6,1!52,749 

( 10,230,941!) 2.161.215 

19!!,1119 
1:!,411,000 

(1'18,442) 

77!1,(t03 6,.Jil(),476 
(8,-144,079) 

IJ. I 8'),J:i0 (::!,043,603) 

:!,95!!.232 117.612 

5,6:?1!.196 1.5711.361) 

!!,5:!6,421{ '5 1.6:!7,'1!11 

Tntol 
Guvcmmcntol 

Fmltls 

$ 31.211,248 
4.419,3:26 

!!7,146 
156.1135 

1,147,721 
65,645,716 

ll.S 111,945 

109,17!!,<))7 

67,447,399 

3,89'l, l65 
3,632,!164 

8411,117 
6,902,007 
1,952,013 
7,6113,760 
7,57!1,215 

890,000 
2,570,660 
7,51!2,210 

4,49(),()()() 
2.1511,914 

102,464 

117.747,71!8 

(1!,568,85 I) 

23:!,324 
I 2,41 1,000 

7311.278 

( 1911,442) 

1),363,61!2 
(IJ,2l!3,791) 

I 3,263,1l51 

4,694,:!1)0 

20,1J22. 1.:.!1 

'5 25.61 (!,121 



OAVIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Y car Ended June 30, .2015 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities, the cost of those asst:ts is allocated over their 
t.-stimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense : 

Capital outlays $ 
Depreciation expense 

11,736.880 
(5,813.239) 

Governmental funds report the disposal of capital assets to the extent proceeds 
are received. Howevt:r, the statement of activities reports the gain or loss: 

Revenut!S in the statement of activities that do not provide current tinancial n:sources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds: 

Decrease in taxes receivable 
Decreao;e in BAB interest subsidy receivable 
lncreao;e in accrued interest receivable 

$ (11,653) 
(222) 

8,122 

The issuance of long·term debt provides current financial resources to governmental 
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-tenn debt consumes the 
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, 
has any effect on net asselo;. Also. governmental funds report the effect of 
issuance costs and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these 
amounts arc deferred and amortized in the statement of activities: 

Principal payments on bonds $ 
Principal payments on lease obligations 
Bonds defeased 
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 
Proceeds from issuance of capital leases 
Discount on bonds issued 
Premium on bonds issued 
Deferred amounts on refunding 
Amortization of discounts on debt 
Amortization of premiums on debt 
Amortization of deferred refunding charges 

4,490,000 
1.034,495 

( 12,41 ',000) 
(738.278) 
198,442 

(82,221) 
3,888 

(232.471) 

Certain expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the usc of 
current financial resources. and. therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds: 

Decrease in accrued sick leave liability 
Decrease in pension expense 
Decrease in KSBIT assessment 
Increase in accrued intcrL'SI payable: 

Change in net position of gove::mmcntal activities 

"it:..: Nut..:~ tu I IIM IItMI " lalcnk'lll 'i 

17 

25.036 
820.437 

36,(11)7 
(42.·H2) 

$ 4.694.200 

5,923.641 

(107,1J6) 

(3.753) 

(7,737,145) 

$ ==1=,6=0=9 .... 50=5= 



DAVIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

June 30, 2015 

Food 
Service 

Fund 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash \,642,506 

Accounts receivable: 
Operating 
Due from other governments 168.869 

Inventory 114,185 

Total current assets 1.925,560 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assclo; 3,185,487 
Less accumulated depreciation (2,357,863) 

Total noncurrent assets 827.624 

Total assets 2,753,184 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension deferred outflows 345,309 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounl<; payable 1,364 
Unearned revenue 86,042 

Total current liabilities 87,406 

Non-current liabilties: 
Net pension liability 2.746,510 

Total liabilities 2,833,916 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension deferred inflows 

NET POSITlON 
Net investment in capital a.ssets 
I lnrestrictcd 

Totnlnct position 

306,540 

827,624 
(Mo9,587) 

$ (41,963) 

S~G! Notes Cu I rnandal St~•1 cmcnts 

IK 

Enterpri~e Funds 
After 

School 
Fund 

$ 537,855 

9,801 

547,656 

253,357 
(141,704) 

111 ,653 

659,309 

53,124 

6,611 

6,611 

422,540 

429,151 

47,160 

111 ,653 
124,469 

$ 236.122 

Total 

$ 2,180,361 

9,801 
168,869 
114,185 

2,473.216 

3,438,844 
(2,499,567) 

939.277 

3,412,493 

398,433 

1,364 
92,653 

94,017 

3,169,050 

3,263 ,067 

353,700 

939,277 
(745,118) 

$ ]94,159 



DAVIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY fUNDS 

Year Ended June 30,2015 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Professional and technical services 
Property services 
Other purchased services 
Supplies and materials 
Property 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Government grants 
Donated commodities 
lntc:rest income 

Total nonopc:rating revenues (expenses) 

Income before capital contribution and transfers 

Capital contribution 

Transfers out 

Change in net position 

Net position. June 30, 2014, n.:stated 

Net position, June 30,2015 

Food 
Service 
Fund 

$ 2,357,554 

2,023,935 
407,559 

20,550 
46,863 

146,603 
4,004,155 

39,398 
13,314 

146,645 

6,849,022 

(4,491,468} 

$ 

'icc Nurcs ru lm:mdal 'ir orcmcnrs ,,, 

3,843,156 
746,898 

7,922 

4,597,976 

106,508 

19,942 

(79,891) 

46,559 

(88,522) 

(41,963) 

Enterprise . Funds 
After 

School 
Fund 

$ 1,111,282 $ 

719,306 
104,634 

9,427 

229 
2,280 

162,275 
4,667 

27,970 

1,030,7RR 

80,494 

31,289 

2,722 

34,011 

114,505 

114,505 

121,617 

$ 236,122 'II 

Total 

3,468,836 

2,743,241 
512,193 

29,977 
47,092 

148,883 
4,166,430 

44,065 
13,314 

174,615 

7,879,810 

(4,410,974) 

3,874,445 
746,898 

10,644 

4,631,987 

221,013 

19,942 

(79,891) 

161,064 

33,095 

194.159 



D.\ VI ESS COUNTY SCIIOOL DISTRICT 

ST,\ rEMENT OF CASH FlOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Y .:ar Emk'IJ June 30. 20 15 

FtKKI 
Service 

Fund 
Cash Rows from operaling acdvilles: 

('ash n:cciv~'IJ tium: 
Charges for services s 2.3(,6,M5 

C;~sh paid to I for: 
Employees (2.556.'J73) 
Supplies (3.188,908) 
Other services (266,()JI)) 

Net cash provu.J~'IJ by (us~'IJ in) uperating activities ( 3.645.255) 

Cnsb Rows from nonrapltnllinanting ncllvlllcs: 
Guvcmtm.'flt grants 3,764,798 
rranslc~ out (79.891} 

Net cash provided by noncapitallin:mcing activities 3.684,907 

Cnsl1 Rows from (llpltnl and related nnnndn~ 
nctlvltles: 

Acquisition of capital assets (119.77{,) 

Net c01sh used in capital and rclat~'ll linnncing .tctivltics (111),776) 

Cnsh Rows from htve§thtg activities: 
Interest income 7.'122 

Net c;~sh provid~'IJ by investing activities 7,922 

Net incn:nst: (tk,;n:asc) in cash and cash •'l!uivalcnts (71.202) 

Cnslt and cash equivalents: 
o~-ginning of Yl!'dr 1.714,7011 

cnd ufyl..";;( s J,b42.506 

R~,;unciliation of npcrJting loss tu net ca.~h 
us~'ll in opct;Jting activities: 

Operating incmnc (loss) s (4,491,-ICIK) 
Adjustments lo n:cmtcilc operating im:umc (lnss) to net 

c01sh pnwidcd by (us~'IJ in) upcrating .tctivitics: 
o~,~'C iatiun cxpcnst: 146.645 
Cummooitit:s us~'ll 746.!!'18 
Chang~'S in assets and li01hilitics: 

Accounts n:ccivahlc ·operating 
lnvcntmy 70,034 
A~cuunts pay01bh: (976} 
Net p~11sionliability and dcfcrr.1ls ( 125,479) 
Ockmd rcvenut: II,()IJI 

Net cash pmvid~'ll hy (us~'IJ in) upcmting activities s (3.645.255) 

Nuncash nuncapital Jinan<.:ing activitks: 
FtKKI coJmrnlllitics linmthc U S. IA'J)attmcnt uf Agriculture S 74o.S9H 

'i,"'i: Nut~., hl l••n.1111:i.1l StJintttti'S 
1U 

Entc!!!risc Funds 
Aller 

School 
Fund Tut<ll 

s 1.102,469 s 3,·1611.114 

(1!43.244) ( 3,400.217) 
( 162,275) (3.351.1113) 

( 16.(,)9) (21!2.6Sl!) 

l!0.311 (3.564.1144) 

3 t .289 3,796,0K7 
(71),1j'll) 

31.289 3.716.196 

{43.862) (163.631!) 

(43,862) ( 163.638) 

2.722 111.644 

2,722 10,644 

70,460 ( 1.742) 

467.31)5 2,1l!2.103 

s 537.l!S5 s 2.1ll0.3fll 

s !!0,4114 s (4,410,974) 

27.970 17-UdS 
746,111JII 

(3,946) (.1,946) 
711,1134 

(36) ( 1,01 2) 
(1'1.304) ( 1-14.71<3) 

(4.:!67} 4.224 

s 110.311 s (1,56-1.'144) 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Inventory 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Due to General Fund 
Due to Special Revenue Fund 
Due to District Activity Fund 
Due to student brroups 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

June 30,2015 

'io:c Noles In I inanci.ll Sl;llcmcnls 
:! I 

$ 

$ 

Private 
Purpose 

Trust 
Fund 

Activity 
Funds 

$ I ,507,336 
6,176 

26,865 

$ 

1,540,377 

18,610 
3,500 
6,000 
6,422 

1,505,845 

1,540,377 



DA VlESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

Year Ended June 30,2015 

Additions: 
Contributions 

Deductions: 
Student support services 

Change in net position 

Net position, June 30,2014 

Net position, June 3 0, 20 15 

<;~'\! Nulc~ tu Finandal SC:Jtcm..-nts 
.!1 

$ 

$ 

Private 
Purpose 
Trust 
Fund 

1,500 

1,500 

==== 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30,2015 

I. Reporting Entity 

The Daviess County Board of Education (Board) is the level of government which has oversight 
responsibilities over all activities related to public elementary and secondary school education 
within the jurisdiction of the Daviess County School District (District). Board members are 
elected by the public and have decision making authority for the District. 

The financial statements of the District include the financial activities of the Board and its 
blended component unit in accordance with principles defining the governmental reporting 
entity adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, as described below. 

Daviess County School District Finance Corporation - The Daviess County School District 
Finance Corporation (Corporation) serves as an agent of the Board in financing the acquisition, 
construction, and equipping of school buildings and related facilities, including the issuance of 
bonds. Members of the Board serve as the board of directors for the Corporation. The 
Corporation has no financial activity, and transactions related to bond issues in which the 
Corporation acts·as an agent are recorded in the District's government-wide financial statements. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation 

Government-Wide Financial Statements- The statement of net position and the statement of 
activities display infonnation about the District as a whole. These statements include the 
financial activities of the primary government, except for fiduciary funds. The statements 
distinguish between those activities of the District that are governmental and those that are 
considered business-type activities. 

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement 
focus. This is the same approach used in the preparation of the proprietary fund financial 
statements but differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are 
prepared. Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include reconciliation with brief 
explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the 
statements for governmental funds. 

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and 
program revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the District and for each 
function or program of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are 
specifically associated with a service, program, or department and are, therefore, clearly 
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of 
the goods or services offered by the program, and bl'fants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not 
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DAVIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Basis of Presentation, Continued 

classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the District, with certain 
limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the 
extent to which each business segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from 
the general revenues of the District. 

Fund Financial Statements - Fund financial statements report detailed information about the 
District. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds 
rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. 
Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. Fiduciary funds are reported 
by fund type. 

The accounting and reporting treabnent applied to a fund is determined by its measurement 
focus. All governmental fund types are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources 
measurement focus. The financial statements for governmental funds are a balance sheet, which 
generally includes only current assets and current liabilities, and a statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances, which reports on the changes in net total assets. 

Proprietary funds and fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus. The statement of cash flows provides information about how the District finances the 
cash flow needs of its proprietary activities. 

The District reports the following funds: 

Governmental Funds: 

General Fund: 
The General Fund is the main operating fund of the Board. It accounts for financial resources 
used for general types of operations. This is a budgeted fund, and any fund balances are 
considered as resources available for use. This is a major fund of the District. 

Special Revenue Funds: 

Special Revenue Fund: 
The Special Revenue Fund accounts for proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than 
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to disbursements 
for specified purposes. (t includes federal financial programs where unused balances 
may be returned to the grantor at the close of the specified project periods, as well as the 
state grant programs. Project accounting is employed to maintain integrity for the 
various sources of funds. The separate projects of federally-funded grant programs are 
identified in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards included in this report. 
This is a major fund of the District. 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Basis of Presentation, Continued 

District Activity Fund: 
The District Activity Fund is used to account for funds to support co-curricular and 
extra-curricular activities not raised or expended by student groups. 

Capital Projects Funds: 
Capital project funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition 
or construction of major capital facilities and equipment (other than those financed by 
proprietary funds). 

SEEK Capital Outlay Fund: 
The Support Education Excellence in Kentucky (SEEK) Capital Outlay Fund receives 
those funds designated by the state as Capital Outlay Funds and is restricted for use in 
financing projects identified in the District's facility plan. 

FSPK Building Fund: 
The Facility Support Program of Kentucky (FSPK) Building Fund accounts for funds 
generated by the building tax levy required to participate in the School Facilities. 

Construction Commission's construction funding and state matching funds, where 
applicable. Funds may be used for projects identified in the District's facility plan. 

Construction Fund: 
The Construction Fund accounts for proceeds from sales ofbonds and other revenues to 
be used for authorized construction. This is a major fund of the district. 

Debt Service Fund: 
The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the 
payment of, long-term debt principal and interest. 

Proprietary Funds (Enterprise): 
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that costs of 
providing goods or services be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 

Food Service Fund: 
The Food Service Fund is used to account for school food service activities, including the 
National School Lunch Program, which is conducted in cooperation with the U.S. 
Department of A!:,'liculture (USDA). Revenues are primarily charges for meals. Amounts 
have been recorded tor in-kind contributions of commodities from the USDA. This is a 
major fund of the District. 

25 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Basis of Presentation, Continued 

After School Fund: 
The After School Fund is used to account for after school programs established to provide 
supervised activities for students after dismissal. Revenues are primarily charges for 
childcare. 

Fiduciary Funds: 

Private Purpose Trust Fund: 
The Private Purpose Trust Fund accounts for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity. 

School Activity Funds: 
The School Activity Funds are agency funds which primarily account for activities of student 
groups. These funds are accounted for in accordance with the Accounting Procedures for 
Kentucky School Activity Funds. These funds are custodial in nature and thus do not present 
results of operations or have a measurement focus. 

Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and 
reported on the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using 
the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting. 

Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions - Revenues resulting from exchange 
transactions, in which each party receives essentially equal value, are recorded on the accrual 
basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenues are recorded in the 
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and available. Available means that the 
resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon 
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, 
available means expected to be received within 60 days of the fiscal year end. 

Non-Exchange Transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal 
value in return, include property taxes, I:,1fants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, 
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. 
Revenue from l:,1fants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all 
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing 
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal 
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DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30,2015 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Basis of Accounting. Continued 

year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local 
resources to be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the 
resources are provided to the District on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, 
revenues from Non-Exchange Transactions must also be available before they can be 
recognized. 

Unearned Revenue- Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue 
recognition criteria have been satisfied. Grants and entitlements received before the costs have 
been earned and eligibility requirements are met, are recorded as unearned revenue. 

Expenses/Expenditures - On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the 
time they are incurred. The fair value of donated commodities used during the year is reported 
in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets as an expense with a like 
amount reported as donated commodities revenue. When an expense is incurred for purposes 
for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available, the District's policy is to first 
apply restricted resources. 

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial 
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the 
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of 
cost, such as depreciation, are not recognized in governmental funds. 

Budgetary Principles 

The District's budgetary process accounts for certain transactions on a basis other than generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The major differences between the budgetary basis and 
the GAAP basis are: 

Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budgetary), as opposed to when 
susceptible to accrual (GAAP). 

Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budgetary), as opposed to when the 
obligation is incurred (GAAP). 

Encumbrance Accounting 

Encumbrance accounting is employed in the governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g., purchase 
orders, contracts) outstanding at year end are included in assigned fund balance. For budgetary 
purposes, appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities 
because the commitments will be reappropriated in the next year. 
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DAVIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Cash and Cash Eguivalents 

The Board considers demand deposits, money market funds, and other investments with an 
original maturity of90 days or less to be cash equivalents. 

Accounts Receivable 

Receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Major receivable 
balances for the governmental activities include federal and state funding and taxes. Balances 
deemed uncollectible are written off; therefore, the District does not record an allowance for 
doubtful accounts. 

lnventories 

Inventory in the General Fund consists of maintenance, instructional, and transportation 
supplies, stated at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. lnventory in the Food Service 
Fund consists of purchased food valued at cost, and donated commodities valued by the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture at fair market value on the date of donation, using the FlFO method. 

Capital Assets 

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the 
proprietary funds and generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These 
assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of 
net assets but are not reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the 
proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type activities column of the government­
wide statement of net assets and in the respective funds. 

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions 
and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at fair market value as of the 
date received. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of one thousand dollars with the 
exception of computers and real property for which there is no threshold. The District does not 
possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized; the cost of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not. 

All reported capital assets are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining 
useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line 
method over the following useful lives for both general capital assets and proprietary fund 
assets: 
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DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FrNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Capital Assets, Continued 

Description 

Land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Technology equipment 
Vehicles 
General equipment 
Food service equipment 

Property Taxes 

Estimated Lives 

20 years 
25-50 years 

5 years 
5-10 years 

10-20 years 
12 years 

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for 
all real and personal property in the District. Taxes are due in one installment on December 1 
and become delinquent by January 1 following the levy date. 

The assessed value of the roll on January I, 2014, on which the levy for the 2015 fiscal year was 
based, totaled $4,996,899,280. Property taxes collected are recorded as revenues in the fiscal 
year for which they were levied. All taxes collected are initially deposited into the General Fund 
and then transferred to the appropriate fund. 

The tax rates assessed for the year ended June 30, 2015, to finance General Fund and FSPK 
Building Fund operations were 51.5 cents and 11.6 cents per $100 valuation, respectively, for a 
total of 63.1 cents per $100 valuation. In addition, the tax rate assessed for motor vehicles 
totaled 49.0 cents per $100 valuation. 

The District also levies a utility gross receipts license tax in the amount of 3% of the gross 
receipts derived from the furnishing within the county of telephonic and telegraphic 
communications services, cablevision services, electric power, water, and natural, artificial, and 
mixed gas. 

Interfund Receivables and Payables 

Each fund is a distinct fiscal and accounting entity, and thus interfund transactions are recorded 
in each fund affected by a transaction. During the year, the General Fund receives and disburses 
funds that relate to other funds or activities. Transfers are then made between the various funds 
to more properly reflect the nature of the transactions. 

Bonds and Related Premiums, Discounts, and Issuance Costs 

In the government-wide financial statements, bond premiums and discounts are deferred and 
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported 
net of the applicable bond premiums or discounts. Bond issuance costs arc expensed when 
bonds are issued. 
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DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FfNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Bonds and Related Premiums. Discounts. and Issuance Costs, Continued 

In governmental fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as debt 
issuance costs are recognized in the current period. The face amount of the debt is reported as 
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuance are also reported as other 
financing sources. Discounts related to debt issuance are reported as other financing uses. 
Issuance costs are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the pension plans, and additions to/deductions from the pension plans' net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plans. For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Net Position 

The District classifies net position in the government-wide financial statements as follows: 

• Net investment in capital assets includes the District's capital assets (net of accumulated 
depreciation) reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other 
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets. 

• Restricted net position includes assets that have third-party (statutory, bond covenant, or 
granting agency) limitations on their use. The District typically uses restricted assets first, as 
appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively defer the use until a 
future project. 

• Unrestricted net position typically includes unrestricted liquid assets. The Board of 
Education has the authority to revisit or alter this designation. 

Fund Balance Classification 

The District reports fund balances in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance 
Reporting and Govemmental Fund Type Definitions. This Statement provides more clearly 
de tined fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a 
government's fund balances more transparent. The following classifications describe the 
relative strength of the spending constraints: 

• Nonspendable fund balance-amounts that are not in spendable fonn (such as inventory) or 
are required to be maintained intact. 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANClAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Fund Balance Classification, Continued 

• Restricted fund balance-amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers {such 
as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional 
provisions, or by enabling legislation. 

• Committed fund balance-amounts constrained to specific purposes by the District itself, 
using its highest level of decision-making authority (i.e., Board of Education). To be 
reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the District 
takes the same highest level action to remove or change the constraint. 

• Assigned fund balance-amounts the District intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent 
can be expressed by the District or by an official or body to which the Board of Education 
delegates the authority. 

• Unassigned fund balance-amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive amounts are 
reported only in the General Fund. 

The Board of Education establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by 
passage of a resolution. This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. 
A fund balance commitment is further indicated in the budget document as a designation or 
commitment of the fund (such as for special incentives). Assigned fund balance is established 
by Board of Education through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for specific 
purpose (such as the purchase of fixed assets, construction, debt service, or for other purposes). 

The District would typically use Restricted fund balances first, followed by Committed 
resources, and then Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right 
to selectively spend Unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds. 

In the General Fund, the District strives to maintain an unassigned fund balance to be used for 
unanticipated emergencies of approximately 15% of the actual GAAP basis expenditures and 
other financing sources and uses. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets, liabilities, designated fund balances, and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could 
di tfer from those estimates. 
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DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

3. Deposits and Investments 

Deposits 

Kentucky Revised Statutes authorize the District to invest money subject to its control in 
obligations of the United States and of its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit 
or other interest-bearing accounts of any bank or savings and loan institution which are insured 
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or similar entity, providing such institutions 
pledge as security obligations, as pennitted by KRS 41.240 ( 4 ), having a current quoted market 
value at least equal to uninsured deposits; commercial paper rated in the highest category by a 
nationally recognized rating agency; bonds or certificates of indebtedness of the State of 
Kentucky and of its agencies and instrumentalities; securities issued by a state or local 
government, or any instrumentality or agency thereof in the United States, and rated in one of 
the three highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency; and shares of mutual funds 
as more fully described in KRS 66.480. 

The District maintains a common checking account for all governmental funds and the trust 
fund. The Food Service Fund and After School Fund (proprietary funds) each maintain separate 
bank accounts. 

At June 30, 2015, the District's bank balances were collateralized by FDIC Insurance and 
irrevocable, unconditional, nontransferable letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan 
Bank which expire in October of 2015 and January of 2016. 

Due to the nature of the accounts and limitations imposed by the purposes of the various funds, 
all cash balances are considered to be restricted except for the General Fund. 

Investments 

At June 30,2015, the District had the following investments and maturities: 

Maturities in Ye!ars 
Less 

T:z:ee Fnir Value Than I 1-5 6-10 10+ None 

U.S Tr\.-asury bonds und not\.'5 $ 1,190,734 $ $ I ,190,734 $ $ $ 

U.S. agcnciC!I obligations 577.394 25,360 342,112 209,922 

Corpor.~tc bonds and notes 

U.S. savings bonds 839,560 839,560 

Bank c~o.'l1i licatcs of deposit I ,369,645 620,631 749,014 

Mutual funds - lixcd income 908,835 908,835 

Total irwcstmcnts $ 4,886,161! $ $ 1.836,725 s I ,IJ 30,686 $ 209,922 $ 908,835 
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DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

3. Deposits and Investments, Continued 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty, a government 
may not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in the possession of an outside 
party. The District's deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the 
provisions of state law. The mutual funds were rated three stars by Morningstar. lnvestments of 
the District held in U.S. government agency obligations carry the explicit guarantee of the U.S. 
government and, therefore, are not subject to custodial credit risk. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The District, in accordance with KRS 66.480, limits the amount that may be invested at any 
time in uncollateralized certificates of deposit, bankers acceptances, commercial paper, and 
securities issued by a state or local government or any instrumentality or agency thereof, to 20% 
of the total amount of funds invested by the District. At June 30, 2015, the District did not 
exceed this limit. In addition, amounts invested in any one issuer did not exceed 5% of total 
investments at fiscal year-end. 

Investment Earnings 

Investment earnings for the year ended June 30, 2015, consisted of: 

Governmental activities: 
Interest and dividend income 
Net decrease in fair value of investments 
Realized gain on sale of investments 
Investment expenses 

Business-type activities: 

$ 236,806 
(59,739) 

(1,712) 
(10,398) 

164,957 

Interest and dividend income I 0,644 

$ 175,601 

Realized gains or losses on investments that had been held in more than one fiscal year and sold 
in the current year were included as a net change in the fair value of investments reported in 
prior years and the current year. 

)) 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30,2015 

4. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015, was as follows: 
Balance Balance 

June JO, 2014 Increase Decrease June 30, 2015 
Governmental activiti~: 
Capital assets, not being 

depreciated: 
Land $ 3,484,809 $ 768,000 $ (8,439) $ 4,244,370 
Construction in progress 3,359,458 7,149,207 {1.975,319) 8.533,346 

Total capital assets, not being 
depreciated 6,844,267 7,917,207 {1.983,758} 12.777,716 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Land improvements 2,775,280 (37,000) 2,738,280 
Buildings and improvements 132,687,114 3,607,319 (701,377) 135,593,056 
Technology equipment 12,317,601 1,113,225 (213,175) 13,217,651 
Vehicles 10,297,228 887,732 (514,580) 10,670,380 
General equipment 4,332,188 186,716 {34.769} 4.484.135 

Totals capital assets, being 
depreciated 162,409,411 5,794,992 ( 1,500,901} 166.703.502 

less accumulated depreciation: 
Land improvements ( 1,984,918) (78,041) 37,000 (2,025,959) 
Buildings and improvements (53,752,047) (3,307,141) 605,434 (56,453,754) 
Technology equipment (8,855,380) (1,432,523) 212,419 (10,075,484) 
Vehicles (6,415,008) (751,949) 514,580 (6,652,377) 
General equipment (3,098,049} (243,585} 32,771 (3.308,863} 

Total accumulated 
depreciation (74,1 05,402} (5.813,239} 1,402,204 (78,516,43 7} 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated, net 88,304,009 (18!247} {98,697} 88,187,065 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets, net $ 95,148,276 $ 7,898,960 $ ~2.082.455) $ 100,964,781 

Business-tme activities: 
Capital assets, being depreciated: 

land improvements $ 15,452 $ $ $ 15,452 
Technology equipment 364,554 49,988 (12,397) 402,145 
Vehicles 18,557 21,222 39,779 
General equipment 2,869,098 112,370 2,981.468 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated 3,267,661 183.580 (12.397} 3,438,844 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Land improvements (6,953) (773) (7,726) 
Technology equipment (300,662) (27,177) 12,397 (315,442) 
Vehicles (18,557) ( 1,769) (20,326) 
General equipment {2,011 , 177~ (144,896} p ,l56,073} 

Total accumulated 
depreciation ~2.337,349~ (174,615} 12.397 ( 2,499,56 7) 

Business·type activities: 
Capital assets, net $ 930,312 $ 8,965 $ $ 939.277 
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4. Capital Assets, Continued 

5. 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows: 

Instructional $ 3,136,506 
Support services: 

Student 809 
Instructional staff 1,375 
District administration 68,213 
School administration 781 
Business support 1,750 
Plant operations and maintenance 1,876,880 
Student transportation 726,925 

Total depreciation expense $ 5,813,239 

Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2015, was as follows: 

Balance Balance Due 
June30, June30, Within 

2014 Additions Deductions 2015 One Year 

Governmental activities: 
Long-term debt: 

School building revenue 
bonds s 64,660,000 s 12,411,000 s (4,490,000) $ 72,581,000 s 4,725,000 

Deferred amounts: 
For issuance premiums 35,498 (3,888) 31,610 
For issuance discounts (912,936) (198,442) 82,221 ( 1,029,157) 

Capital lease obligations 1.759,936 738.278 ( 1.034,495} 1,463,719 770,967 

Totallong-tenn llcbt 65.542,498 12,950,836 ~5.446.162} 73.047.172 5,495,967 

KSBIT assessment 146,789 p6.697) 110.092 18.349 

Compensated absences: 
Accrued sick leave 2.786,109 427.276 i452.312} 2,761,073 434.334 

Net pension liability 18.524,900 i566,950} 17,957,950 

Total goV(.'ffimcntal activities $ 87,000,296 s 13,378,112 $ ~ 6,502,121) $ 1>3,876.287 $ 5,948,650 

Business-type activities: 
Net pension liability $ 3.269,100 $ s 1100.050) s 3,169,050 s 

The insurance assessment is expected to be liquidated by the General Fund. Compensated 
absences and the net pension liability are expected to be liquidated by the funds which incurred 
the related salary and wage costs. 

School Building Revenue Bonds 

The District is obligated to make lease payments in amounts equal to annual debt service 
requirements on bonds issued by the Daviess County Fiscal Court, the Daviess County School 
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5. Long-Term Liabilities, Continued 

School Building Revenue Bonds, Continued 

District Finance Corporation and the Kentucky School Facility Construction Commission 
(Commission) to construct or renovate school facilities. The Board has an option to purchase 
the properties at any time by retiring the bonds outstanding. These lease payments are recorded 
in the Debt Service Funds. 

ln addition, the District has entered into participation agreements with the Commission. The 
Commission was created by the Kentucky Legislature for the purpose of assisting local school 
districts in meeting school construction needs. 

A summary of District and Commission bond activity for the year ended June 30, 2015, is as 
follows: 

Balance, June 30, 2014 
Issued 
Defeased 
Retired 

Balance, June 30, 2015 

$ 

$ 

District 

64,518,458 $ 
11,205,309 

(4,437,941) 

71,285,826 $ 

Commission 

141,542 $ 
1,205,691 

(52,059) 

1,295,174 $ 

Total 

64,660,000 
12,411,000 

( 4,490,000) 

72,581,000 

A summary of the interest rates, maturities, and balances is as follows: 

2002A Issue 
20028 Issue 
2003 Issue 
2004A Issue 
20048 Issue 
2004C Issue 
2005A Issue 
20058 Issue 
20061ssue 
2007A Issue 
20078 Issue 
2008A Issue 
20088 Issue 
2010A Issue 
20108 Issue 
2011 Issue 
2012 Issue 
2013A Issue 
20138 Issue 
2014 Issue 
20148&C Issue 
2015A Issue 

Range of 
Interest Final 
Rates 

2.00 - 4.400% 
2.00 - 3.750% 
1.65 - 4.000% 
2.00 - 3.625% 
2.00 - 3.625% 
2.00 - 5.000% 
3.00 - 4.400% 
3.50 - 3.750% 

4.21% 
4.21% 

4.00 - 4.500% 
3.00 - 3.400% 
3.00 - 3. 750% 
1.70 - 5.500% 
0.80 - 5.500% 
0.75 - 2.125% 
2.00 - 2.500% 

1.50 - 3.25% 
1.000 - 2.00% 
0.35 - 3.625% 

3.200 - 3.750% 
2.000 - 3.625% 

Maturity 

2012 
2014 
2023 
2015 
2016 
2024 
2025 
2017 
2026 
2027 
2027 
2020 
2028 
2030 
2030 
2023 
2024 
2033 
2026 
2034 
2035 
2035 

J6 

$ 

Balance, June 30, 2015 

295,000 
128,128 

1,250,000 

567,389 
495,000 

2,750,000 
9,055,000 
1,815,000 
4,565,000 
1,910,000 

10,015,000 
9,625,000 
3,720,000 
1,880,000 
3,410,000 
8,600,000 
2,486,000 
8,719,309 

Commission 

$ $ 
295,000 

11,872 140,000 
1,250,000 

77,611 645,000 
495,000 

2,750,000 
9,055,000 
1,815,000 
4,565,000 
1,910,000 

10,015,000 
9,625,000 
3,720,000 
1,880,000 
3,410,000 
8,600,000 
2,486,000 

1,205,691 9,925,000 

$ 7 1.285,826 $ 1.295,174 $ 72,581,000 
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5. Long-Term Liabilities, Continued 

School Building Revenue Bonds, Continued 

The bonds may be called prior to maturity and redemption premiums are specified in each issue. 
Assuming no bonds are called prior to scheduled maturity, the minimum obligations of the 
District and amounts to be paid by the Commission, at June 30, 2015, for debt service (principal 
and interest) are as follows: 

Daviess County Kentucky School Facility 
School District Construction Commission 

Year 
Ending District Commission 
June30, Princieat Interest Total Princieal Interest Total Total 

2016 s 4,629,433 s 2,345,003 $ 6,974,436 $ 95,567 $ 39,449 $ 135,016 s 7,109,452 
2017 4,515,978 2,206,755 6,722,733 87,022 38,982 126,004 6,848,737 
2018 4,639,069 2,075,657 6,714,726 46,931 46,931 6,761,657 
2019 4,759,661 1,942,261 6,701,922 48,339 48,339 6,750,261 
2020 4,888,211 1,806,603 6,694,814 49,789 49,789 6,744,603 
2021-
2025 25,204,733 6,740,253 31,944,986 272,267 272,267 32,217.253 
2026-
2030 16,110,816 2,861,819 18,972,635 319,184 319,184 19,291,819 
2031-
2035 6,537,925 654.152 7,192,077 376.075 376,075 7,568,152 

$ 71.285,826 $ 20,632.503 $ 91,918,329 $ 1.295,174 $ 78.431 $ 1,373,605 $ 93,291.934 

Generally, all bonds issued are secured by a statutory mortgage lien on the respective school 
buildings and appurtenant properties, including any subsequent additions thereto. The amount 
of interest expense on bonds payable for the year ended June 30, 2015, totaled $2,620,101, of 
which $2,426,194, was paid by the District, $4,876 was paid by the Commission, and $189,031 
subsidized under the Build America Bond program discussed below. 

ln prior years, the District defeased certain general obligation and other bonds by placing the 
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on 
the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are 
not included in the District's tinancial statements. On June 30, 2015, $19,650,000 of bonds 
outstanding are considered defeased. 

In connection with the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Act), the District 
issued the Series 20 I OA and Series 20 I OB General Obligation Build America Bonds. Under the 
Act, state and local governments were authorized to issue taxable bonds to tinance capital 
expenditures for which they could otherwise issue tax-exempt bonds, and receive from the IRS a 
direct interest subsidy totaling 35% of the total coupon interest paid to investors. The interest 
subsidy for tiscal year 2015 totaled $189,031, net of a reduction of $14,696, due to 
sequestrution. Remaining interest subsidies through maturity of the bonds, assuming no further 
sequestration reductions, are as follows: 
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5. Long-Term Liabilities, Continued 

School Building Revenue Bonds, Continued 

Year Ending June 30: 

2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021-2025 
2026~2030 

Capital Lease Obligations 

$ 197,928 
191,028 
182,392 
172,872 
162,014 
633,972 
266,912 

$ 1,807,118 

The District is obligated under leases for eq\,lipment that are accounted for as capital leases. 
Assets under capital leases at June 30, 2015, totaled $1,397,698, net of accumulated 
depreciation of $3,377,863. Amortization of these capital leases included in depreciation 
expense totaled $6 72,8 7 4 for the year ended June 30, 2015. The following is a schedule by year 
of future minimum lease payments under capital lease obligations, including interest, at rates of 
1.981% to 11 .867%, together with the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of 
June 30, 2015: 

2016 $ 808,840 
2017 515,118 
2018 199,634 

Total minimum lease payments 1,523,592 
Less amount representing interest 59,873 

Present value of future minimum lease payments $ 1,463,719 

Interest expense on capital lease obligations for the year ended June 30, 2015, totaled $53, 130. 

Compensated Absences 

Upon retirement, as defined by the Kentucky Teachers' Retirement System or the County 
Employees Retirement System, certified and classified employees received an amount equal to 
30% of the value of accumulated sick leave based on the individual tinal salary. This liability 
totaled $2,761,073 at June 30, 2015, and is recorded as a long-tenn liability in the district-wide 
financial statements. 
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5. Long-Term Liabilities, Continued 

6. 

7. 

Compensated Absences, Continued 

For governmental fund financial statements, the amount of compensated absences recorded as a 
liability would be the amount expected to be paid using expendable available resources. These 
obligations for June 30, 2015, were paid prior to fiscal year end and, therefore, no amount has 
been accrued in the governmental fund financial statements. 

KSBlT Assessment 

In years prior to fiscal year 2000, the District participated in the Kentucky School Board 
Insurance Trust, which has become insolvent. In accordance with the original participation 
agreement and a court order dated June 4, 2014, each participant in the trust in any prior year 
was levied an assessment to cover the deficit in order to close the trust. Installment amounts to 
be paid by the District are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30: 

2016 $ 18,349 
2017 18,349 
2018 18,349 
2019 18,349 
2020 18,348 
2021 18,348 

$ 110,092 

Interfund Receivables and Payables 

lnterfund balances at June 30, 2015, consisted of the following: 

Fund Receivable Payable 

General Fund $ 3,500 $ 
Special Revenue Fund 6,000 
District Activity Fund 6,422 
Activity Funds 15,922 

$ 15,922 $ 15,922 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and/or balance sheet will sometimes 
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement 
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to 
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7. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, Continued 

a future period( s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) 
until then. The District has two items that qualify for reporting in this category at June 30, 2015: 
the deferred charge on refunding reported in the government-wide statement of net position 
totaling $1,203,227, and the pension deferred outflows totaling $2,656,220. A deferred charge 
on refunded debt results from the difference in the carrying value of the refunded debt and its 
reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the 
refunded or refunding debt. The pension deferred outflows are described in Note 9 to the 
financial statements. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and/or balance sheet will sometimes 
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement 
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a 
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 
The District has two items that meet these criteria. The first item, which arises only under a 
modified accrual basis of accounting, is General Fund delinquent property taxes totaling 
$216,414 at June 30, 2015. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the 
governmental funds balance sheet. The second item, which arises under the full accrual basis of 
accounting, is the pension deferred inflows totaling $2,358,000, as described in Note 9 to the 
financial statements. 

The District reports unearned revenue on its government-wide and fund financial statements. 
Unearned revenues arise when potential revenue does not meet both the "measureable" and 
"available" criteria for recognition in the current period {fund financial statements). Unearned 
revenues also arise when resources are unearned by the District and received before it has a legal 
claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying 
expenditures (fund financial statements and government-wide financial statements). In 
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the District has a 
legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the applicable 
financial statement and revenue is recognized. 

Unearned revenue in the fund and government-wide financial statements atJune 30,2015, was 
as follow: 

Governmental activities: 
General Fund: 

Unearned contract revenue 
Special Revenue Fund: 

Unearned grant revenue 

Business~type activities: 
Food Service Fund: 

Prepaid meal charges 
After School Fund: 

Prepaid fees 

.JO 

$ 111 ,700 

1,593,334 

$ 1,705,034 

$ 86,042 

6,611 

92,653 

$ 1,797,687 
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8. Leases 

The Daviess County School District leases equipment under cancelable operating leases. 
Commitments under operating lease agreements described above provide for minimum future 
rental payments as of June 30, 2015, as follows: 

Year ending June 30: 
2016 $ 118,948 
2017 84,470 
2018 50,757 
2019 14,052 

Total minimum rentals $ 268,227 

Rental expense for operating leases, including contingent rentals on a per copy basis of 
$138,758 totaled $262,019 for the year ended June 30, 2015. 

9. Pension Plans 

KENTUCKY TEACHERS RETlREMENT SYSTEM 

Plan Description 

Teaching-certified employees of the District are provided with pensions through the Teachers' 
Retirement System of the State of Kentucky, commonly known as the Kentucky Teachers 
Retirement System (KTRS) -a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by the Commonwealth of Kentucky (State). Kentucky Revised Statutes Chapter 
161 grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms to the KTRS Board ofTrustees 
(KTRS Board). KTRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at 
www.ktrs.ky.gov. 

Benefits Provided 

For Members Before July /, 2008: 

Members become vested when they complete 5 years of credited service. To qualifY for 
monthly retirement benefits, payable for life, members must either: 

I . Attain age 55 and complete 5 years of Kentucky service, or 
2. Complete 27 years of Kentucky service. 

Members receive monthly payments equal to 2% (service prior to July I, 1983) and 2.5% 
(service after July I, 1983) of their tinal average salaries for each year of credited service. 
Members who became members on or after July I, 2002, will receive monthly benefits equal to 
2% of their final average salary for each year of service if, upon retirement, their total service is 
less than I 0 years. New members atler July I, 2002, who retire with I 0 or more years of total 
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9. Pension Plans, Continued 

Benefits Provided, Continued 

service will receive monthly benefits equal to 2.5% of their final average salary for each year of 
service, including the first 10 years. In addition, non-university members who retire July I, 
2004, and later with more than 30 years of service will have their multiplier increased for all 
years over 30 from 2.5% to 3% to be used in their benefit calculation. 

The final average salary is the member's 5 highest annual salaries, except members at least age 
55 with 27 or more years of service may use their 3 highest annual salaries. For all members, 
the annual allowance is reduced by 5% per y~ar from the earlier of age 60 or the date the 
member would have completed 27 years of service. The minimum annual service allowance for 
all members is $440 multiplied by credited service. 

For Members On or After July 1, 2008: 

Members become vested when they complete 5 years of credited service. To qualify for 
monthly retirement benefits, payable for life, members must either: 

1. Attain age 60 and complete 5 years of Kentucky service, or 
2. Complete 27 years of Kentucky service, or 
3. Attain age 55 and complete lO years of Kentucky service. 

The annual retirement allowance for members is equal to: (a) 1.7% of final average salary for 
each year of credited service if their service is I 0 years or less; (b) 2.0% of final average salary 
for each year of credited service if their service is greater than 10 years but no more than 20 
years; (c) 2.3% of final average salary for each year of credited service iftheir service is greater 
than 20 years but no more than 26 years; (d) 2.5% of final average salary for each year of 
credited service if their service is greater than 26 years but no more than 30 years; (e) 3.0% of 
final average salary for years of credited service greater than 30 years. 

TI1e final average salary is the member's 5 highest annual salaries, except members at least age 
55 with 27 or more years of service may use their 3 highest annual salaries. For all members, 
the annual allowance is reduced by 6% per year from the earlier of age 60 or the date the 
member would have completed 27 years of service. 

Other Benefits 

KTRS provides post-employment medical benefits to retirees as fully described in the publicly 
available financial report which can be accessed at the internet address noted above. KTRS also 
provides disability benefits for vested members at the rate of 60% of the final average salary. A 
life insurance benetit, payable upon the death of a member, is $2,000 for active contributing 
members and $5,000 tor retired or disabled members. 
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9. Pension Plans, Continued 

Other Benefits, Continued 

Cost of living increases are l.5% annually. Additional ad hoc increases and any other benefit 
amendments must be authorized by the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 

Contributions 

Contribution rates are established by Kentucky Revised Statutes. Members are required to 
contribute 12.105% of their salaries to KTRS. The school districts' contractually required 
contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2015, was 15.355% of creditable compensation. 
Kentucky Revised Statutes require the State to contribute 100% of school districts' contractually 
required contributions, which are actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with 
employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs ofbenefits earned by employees during 
the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 

The member and State contribution rates disclosed above include 2.25% to fund medical and 
life insurance plans. In addition, school districts are required to contribute 2.25% of creditable 
compensation to the insurance plans, which totaled $1,024,603 for the District for the year 
ended June 30, 2015. 

School districts are required to reimburse the State for KTRS contributions made by the State 
for members whose positions are federally funded. These reimbursements, which are charged 
by the District to the respective federal programs, totaled $491,909 for the year ended June 30, 
2015. 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

Because the State, as a non-employer contributing entity, is required by Kentucky Revised 
Statutes to contribute 100% of the District's contractually required contributions, the District 
reports no pension liabilities, pension expenses, deferred outflows of resources, or deferred 
inflows of resources related to KTRS. 

The portion of the KTRS net pension liability that was associated with the District recognized at 
June 30, 2015, was as follows: 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
associated with the District 

Total 

43 

$ 

318,464,968 

$ 318,464,968 
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9. Pension Plans, Continued 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used 
to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 
2013. The net pension liability associated with the District was based on a projection of the 
District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined. At June 
30, 2014, the proportion of the KTRS net pension liability associated with the District was 
1.5498%. 

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District recognized on-behalf pension expense and 
revenue of$15,605,432 for contributions provided by the State. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2013, actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

3.5% 

4.0 to 8.2%, average, including inflation 

7.5%, net of pension plan investment expense, 
including inflation 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table for Males and Females, 
as appropriate, with adjustments for mortality improvements based on a projection of Scale AA 
to 2020 with a setback of one year for females. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013, valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study tbr the period July I, 2005, to June 30, 2010. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log­
normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and 
by adding expected intlation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of 
return tbr each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
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Actuarial Assumptions, Continued 

Long-Term Expected 
Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return 

U.S. equity 45% 6.4% 

Non U.S. equity 17% 6.5% 

Fixed income 24% 1.6% 

High yield bonds 4% 3.1% 

Real estate 4% 5.8% 

Alternatives 4% 6.8% 

Cash 2% 1.5% 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.23%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be made at 
the current contribution rates and that State contributions will be made at statutorily required 
rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members until the 2036 
plan year and, as a result, the Municipal Bond Index Rate was used in the determination of the 
SEIR. On the Prior Measurement Date, the long-term expected rate of return of7.50% on Plan 
investments was applied to periods before 2036 and the Municipal Bond Index Rate of 4.27% 
was applied to periods on or after 2036, resulting in as SEIR of 5.16%. There was a change in 
the Municipal Bond Index Rate from the Prior Measurement Date to the Measurement Date, so 
as required under GASBS No. 68, the SEIR at the Measurement Date of 5.23% was calculated 
using the Municipal Bond Index Rate as ofthe Measurement Date (4.35%}. This change in the 
discount rate is considered a change in actuarial assumptions under GASB 68. 

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability is zero, consideration of 
potential changes in the discount rate is not applicable to the District. 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the KTRS fiduciary net position is available in the publicly available 
financial report. 
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9. Pension Plans, Continued 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

Because the State is required by statute to contribute 100% of the District's contractually 
required pension contributions, the District reports a payable of $0 for such pension 
contributions at June 3 0, 2015. Amounts payable for the insurance plans and the reimbursement 
for federally-funded employees totaled $0 and $0, respectively, at June 30, 2015. 

COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Plan Description 

The District contributes to the County Employees Retirement System (CERS), which is a cost­
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by Kentucky Retirement 
Systems (K.RS) that covers all regular full-time members employed in nonhazardous positions 
of each participating county, city, and school board, and any additional eligible local agencies 
electing to participate in CERS. Kentucky Revised Statute Section 61.645 assigns the authority 
to establish and amend benefit provisions to the Board of Trustees of Kentucky Retirement 
Systems (Board). CERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at 
www.kvret.ky.gov. 

Benefits Provided 

CERS provides for retirement, disability, and death benefits to system members. Retirement 
benefits may be extended to beneficiaries of members under certain circumstances. Retirement 
benefits are determined using a formula which considers the member's final compensation; 
benefit factors set by statute which vary depending upon the type/amount of service, 
participation date, and retirement date; and years of service. Plan members with a participation 
date prior to September 1, 2008, are eligible to retire with full benefits at any time with 27 or 
more years of service credit, or at age 65 with at least 48 months of service credit. Plan 
members with a participation date on or after September 1, 2008, are eligible to retire with full 
benetits at age 57 if the member's age and years of service equal87, or at age 65 with at least 60 
months of service credit. 

Contributions 

Per Kentucky Revised Statues Section 78.545(33), contribution requirements of the active 
employees and the participating employers are established and may be amended by the KRS 
Board. Plan members who began participating in CERS prior to September I, 2008, are 
required to contribute 5% of their annual creditable compensation. For Plan members who 
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9. Pension Plans, Continued 

Contributions. Continued 

began participating in CERS on or after September 1, 2008, the contribution rate is 6%. The 
District's actuarially detennined contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2015, was 17.67% 
of annual creditable compensation. Contributions to CERS by the District were $2,656,220 for 
the year ended June 30, 2015. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows ofResources, and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2015, the District reported a liability of$21, 127,000 for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,2014, and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2014, 
the District's proportion was 0.651196%. 

The net pension liability is reflected in the financial statements as follows: 

Governmental Activities $ 1719571950 

Business-Type Activities: 
Food Service Fund 2,746,510 
After School Fund 422,540 

3,169,050 

Total $ 21,127,000 

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District recognized pension expense of $1,691,000. At 
June 30, 2015, the District reported deferred outtlows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred outtlows of n:sourc~'S: 
District contrihutions subsequent 

to the m~o':lsurcmcnt date $ 

Dcti:rred inflows of rc.:sourccs: 
Net uiiTerc:ncc betW~'II proj~.--cted 

and actual earnings on 

Governmental 
Activities 

2,257,7!!7 $ 

investments $ (2,004,300) $ 

47 

Busim.-ss·Txgc Activities 
Food Atler 

Service School 
Fund Funll Total 

Entity· 
WidcTotlll 

345,309 $ 53.124 $ 39!!,433 s 2.656.220 

(306,540) $ ( 4 7 .160) $ (353, 700) $ ( 2,35!!,000) 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

9. Pension Plans, Continued 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred lnflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions, Continued 

The $2,656,220 of deferred outflows of resources resulting from the District's contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability 
in the year ending June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ending June 30, 

2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

Actuarial Assumptions 

$ 589,500 
589,500 
589,500 
589,500 

$ 2,358,000 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2014, actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

[nflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate 
of return 

3.5% 

4.5% average, including inflation 

7.75%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 

Mortality rates were based on the 1983 Group Annuity Mortality Table for all retired members 
and beneficiaries as of June 30,2006, and the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table for all other 
members. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2014, valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July I, 2005 - June 30, 2008. 

The long·term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is reviewed as part of the 
regular experience studies prepared every five years. The most recent analysis, performed for 
the period covering fiscal years 2005 through 2008, is outlined in a report dated Au&,JUst 25, 
2009. Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return assumption 
including long-term historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log·norrnal 
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected return, net of investment expense, and intlation) were developed by the investment 
consultant tor each major asset class. These ranges were combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and then adding expected intlation. The capital market assumptions 

4H 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

9. Pension Plans, Continued 

Actuarial Assumptions. Continued 

developed by the investment consultant are intended for use over a l O~year horizon and may not 
be useful in setting the long~term rate of return for funding pension plans which cover a longer 
time frame. The assumption is intended to be a long-term assumption and is not expected to 
change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, 
or a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in future years. The target 
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 

Long~ Term 
Target Expected Real Rate 

Asset Class Allocation of Return 

Domestic equity 30% 8.45% 
International equity 22% 8.85% 
Emerging market equity 5% 10.5% 
Private equity 7% 11.25% 
Real estate 5% 7% 
Core US fixed income 10% 5.25% 
High~yield US fixed income 5% 7.25% 
Non US fixed income 5% 5.5% 
Commodities 5% 7.75% 
TlPS 5% 5% 
Cash 1% 3.25% 
Total 100% 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7. 75%. TI1e projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that local employers would contribute the 
actuarially determined contribution rate of projected compensation over the remaining 29~year 
amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Based on those assumptions, the 
Plan's tiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current active and inactive employees. Theretbre, the long~term expected rate of 
return on Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benetit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity ofthe District's Proportionate Share ofthe Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of7.75%, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FrNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

9. Pension Plans, Continued 

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate, Continued 

pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is !-percentage-point 
lower (6.75%) or !-percentage-point higher (8.75%) than the current rate: 

1% decrease 
Current discount rate 
1% increase 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Discount rate 

6.75% 
7.75% 
8.75% 

District's 
proportionate share 

of net pension 
liability 

$27,802,000 
$21,127,000 
$15,230,000 

Detailed information about the CERS fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
Kentucky Retirement Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

At June 30, 2015, the District reported a payable as follows for the outstanding amount of 
contributions due to CERS for the year: 

Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities: 
Food Service Fund 
After School Fund 

Total 

10. On-Behalf Payments 

$ 589,827 

1,364 

1,364 

$ 591,191 

Payments are made by the Commonwealth of Kentucky for various purposes on behalf of the 
District. These on-behalf payments are budgeted and recorded as revenue and expense in the 
governmental funds of the District, and are comprised of the following: 

KTRS contributions 
Health insurance 
Flex spending 
State lite insurance 
Technolo~:,'Y 

50 

$ 7,504,722 
10,146,661 

989,722 
20,524 

117,698 

$ 18,779,327 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

11. Fund Balance Classification 

The composition of the fund balance classifications at June 30, 2015, is as follows: 
'-!nil!! QSlv~mm~nl~l [ynds l'lolllDail![ !l!ll!eDllll!:nll!l E!lmh 

rotal 
Special District l'SPK Norunajor 

Gencrnl Revenue Construction Activity Duildill{l Gov~nunem 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund :tlFunds Total 

Fund balances: 
Nonspcndnblc-

lnvcntory s 284,325 s s s s s s 284.J2S 

Restricted for: 
Future c~pit~l n.:eds 621,291 1.625,876 1,625.876 2.247,167 
Other 7,965,137 62,105 62.105 8,027.242 
T cc hno!otiY 102.438 102.438 

102.438 H.586,428 fi2.105 1,625.876 1.687.981 10.376.847 

Committed: 
Sitc·based cnnyfo!Ward 217.036 217.036 

Assigned: 
Futun: construction 

project 1,006,957 1,006.957 
Purclwe obliptions 14.904 29.879 -14.783 

1,021.861 29.879 1.051 .740 

Unnssegned 13.716.252 !29.8791 13.686.373 

roL111Und bnlnnccs s I 5.239.47-1 s 102.438 s 8.586.428 s 62.105 s 1.1>25,876 s 1.687.981 s 25.616.321 

The District has $8,009,920 of encumbrances of operating funds in major and nonmajor funds at 
June 30,2015, rolled over into the next fiscal year. 

12. Transfers 

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2015, consisted of the following: 

Transfers in: 

Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Major Governmental Funds Fund 

Special 
General Revenue Construction Dc:bt S~'t"Vice 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Total 

Transf~ out: 

Mujor Governmental 
Fund: 
General Fund s $ 1!39,712 $ $ $ 839,712 

Nonmujor Gov~mmcntal 
Funds: 
SEEK Capilal Outlay 

Fund 1,006,957 1,006,957 
FSPK Building Fund 25!!,043 771!,603 (1,4()(),4 76 7.437.122 

!1,444,079 

Major Enterprise Fund: 
Food Service Funtl 79,1!1) l 79,891 

s 1,344,1!9 I $ 839,712 $ 771!,603 $ (),400,4 76 $ 1),363.682 

5 1 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FfNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 20 15 

12. Transfers, Continued 

Transfers are used to: l) move revenues from the funds with collection authorization to the 
funds where budgetary authorizations exist for disbursement; 2) reimburse the General Fund for 
costs incurred to support proprietary fund activity; and 3) to move unrestricted General Fund 
revenues to programs accounted for in other funds for which the General Fund provides 
subsidies or matching funds. 

During fiscal year 2015, capital assets totaling $19,942 were transferred from governmental 
activities capital assets to the Food Service Fund. This transaction is reflected as a capital 
contribution in the Food Service Fund, but as a transfer in the entity-wide financial statements as 
follows: 

Transfers out per Proprietary Funds, Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets $ (79,891) 

Capital contribution 19,942 

Net transfers in per Statement of Activities, Business-
Type Activities $ __ 5_9..:.,9_4_9_ 

13. Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
District purchases unemployment insurance through the Kentucky School Boards Insurance 
Trust Unemployment Compensation Fund; however, risk has not been transferred to such fund. 
In addition, the District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. 
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in 
any of the past three fiscal years. 

14. Contingencies 

The District receives funding from Federal, state and local government agencies and from 
private contributions. These funds are to be used for designated purposes only. For government 
agency grants, if based upon the grantors' review, the funds are considered not to have been used 
for the intended purpose, the grantors may request a refund of monies advanced, or refuse to 
reimburse the District for its disbursements. The amount of such future refunds and 
unreimbursed disbursements, if any, is not expected to be significant. Continuation of the 
District's .b'fant programs is predicated upon the grantors' satisfaction that the funds provided are 
being spent as intended and the grantors' intent to continue their programs. 

15. Commitments 

During fiscal year 2015, the District entered into construction contracts totaling $12,416,087 for 
various facility improvements. Remaining commitments under these contracts totaled 
$7,034,765 at June 30, 2015, of which $456,054 was included in accounts payable in the 
Construction Fund. 

52 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

16. Impact of Recently (ssued Accounting Principles 

In fiscal year 2015, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting/or Pensions (GASBS No. 68), which amends or supersedes the accounting 
and financial reporting guidance for pensions that are provided to the employees of state and 
local governmental employers through pension plans administered through trusts. The objective 
is to improve accounting and financial reporting for pensions by state and local governments. 

Under GASBS No. 68, the liability to be recognized by participating employers is measured as 
the portion of the present value of projected benefit payments to be provided through the 
pension plan to current active and inactive employees that is attributed to those employees' past 
periods of service (total pension liability), less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net 
position. The pension expense and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions that are required to be recognized by an employer result primarily 
from changes in the components of the net pension liability, as detailed in Note 9 to financial 
statements. 

In the financial statements, the implementation of GASBS No. 68 resulted in a reduction of 
beginning net position, as reflected below: 

Business-Type Activities 
Food Aller 

Governmental Service School Entity· Wide 
Activities Fund Fund Total Total 

Net position, June 30, 2014, 
as previously reported $ 48,750,710 $ 2,744,698 $ 557,497 $ 3,302,195 $ 52,052,905 

Restatement i 18,524,900) (2,833.220) ~435,880} p,269,1 ()()) pl ,794,000} 

Net position, June 30, 2014, 
rcstat~'tl $ 30,225,810 $ (88,522) $ I 21.617 $ 33,095 $ 30,258,905 



Revenues: 
Property ta:~es 
Utility taxes 
ruition <lllLIIi.'CS 

Eamings on investmeniS 
Other lucaln:venut! 
State aid 
F1.'tlcrnl aitl 

Totul revenues 

E.'tpcntl iturcs: 
I nstruc lion 
Support services: 

Stutl1.'tll 
Instructional staiT 
District atlmmistrntion 
School atlministrnllon 
Business 
Plunt opcmtiun aud maintenance 
Studenttmnsportatiun 

Community services 
Building renovations I adtlitions 

Total c.'l:pcnuiturcs 

Exc1.'SS (ddiciency) or revenues uvcr expenditures 

Other financing suun:es (uses): 
Pmc~'l.'tls fmm snlc of capital assets 
ProCCI.'tlS from issuuncc ur capital ICUSI.'S 
Operating trnnsli:rs in 
Op1.'r.lting lr.mslcrs <lUI 

ruta( nthcr financing SllUI\!es (USL'S) 

1:-~.:~.-ss (dcliclU of revenue and other financing 
suun:cs over c:o~pcntliturcs and other 
linancing soun:1.'S (US I.'S) 

f und balance, June 30, :!OI-l 

Fund bal:mcc. June 311, 20 I 5 

DA VIESS COUNTY SCIIOOL DISTRICT 

UUDGETARY COMPARISON SCIIEOULE 

GENERAL FUND 

Y c;Jr EnLIL'tl June JH. 201 5 

Outl~ct 

Original Final 

$ 25,6~0.117-1 $ 25,1!24.474 
3, 900,000 4,18~.500 

CJll,OOII 87,100 
250,000 13(),()()() 
6-15,500 562,550 

55,244.8:!8 j6,32-1.436 
ll!II,OUII 233,000 

!!5.990,402 K7.351l,ll60 

SCJ,.l41,805 57.729,1>28 

3,1103,417 3.41!6,589 
3,439,704 3,517,32K 

10,165,125 11.3611,51!5 
6,821.417 7.109,773 
I,H 15.585 2,171,512 
7,377,456 9,003,334 
7,726,!!89 7,677,375 

I)IJ,69 1,398 11)2,057,-124 

(13,700,996) ( 14.707,364) 

15,0110 3-1,000 

IUS.260 1,34-1,1191 
(CJIJ,OIIJ) (J5t .2H:n 

21.241 1,027.609 

( 13.679,755) ( 13.671),755) 

13,679,755 13,679,755 

s 
=====-

\) 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Actual Over ( Untlcr) 

s 26.214.341! $ 389,874 
4,419,326 230,826 

87,146 46 
130,949 949 
522,57:! (.l1J,978) 

57,7')4,604 1,-170,16!! 
454,521 221.521 

!!IJ,623,466 2.:!73,406 

51!,2()3,078 (473,150) 

3, 191!,707 ~87,1!82 

3,312.307 205,()21 
K-1!1,117 I 0,512.46!! 

6,891,()32 21!!,7-11 
1,952,013 220,491) 

7,692,264 1.311,070 
7,:!43,991 -133,384 

81J,341 .509 12,715,915 

2111 .957 14,981),321 

3-1,305 305 
731!,278 73!!,271! 

I,J-14,891 
(!139,712) (-1!!11,430) 

1,277.762 250,153 

1,559,719 15,231),474 

13,679,755 

15.239,474 S I 5.239,47-1 



DAVIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Y ~ar End~d June 30, 20 IS 

Variance with 
Budget Final Budget 

Original Final Actual Over (Under) 
Revenues: 

Other local revenue $ 378,475 $ 394,821 $ ~11,437 $ 16,616 
State aid 4,179,979 4,598,272 4,2.42.,013 (356,259) 
Fcdernl aid 5,343,659 5,825.004 5,867,171 42,167 

Total revenues 9,902.113 10,818,097 10,52.0,621 (2.97,476) 

Expenditures: 
Instruction 7.849.682 8,730,498 9,143,750 (413.252) 
Support services: 

Student 650,253 661,712 700,458 (38,746) 
Instructional staff 1!6,034 253,964 22.0,793 33.171 
School administration 9,032 26,353 10,975 15,378 
Plant operation and maintenance 5,419 5,419 1,496 3,923 
Student transportation 460,550 468,266 334,224 134,042 

Community services 909,902 911,597 890,000 21,597 

Total expenditures 9,970,872 11.057,809 11,301,696 (243,887) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (68,759) (239,712) (781,075) (541.363) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 99,019 239,712 839,712 600,000 
Operating transfers out (30,260) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 68,759 239,712 839,712 600,000 

Excess (deficit) of revenue and other financing 
sources over c:<penditurcs and other 
financing sources (uses) 58,637 58,637 

Fund balance, June 30, 2014 43,801 43,801 43,801 

Fund balance. June 30, 2015 $ 43,1!01 ~ 43,1!01 $ 102.438 $ 58,637 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCI IEOULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF Tl IE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
KENTUCKY TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Last I 0 Fiscal Years * 

District's proportion of the plan total net pension liability 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District $ 

State's proportionate share of the net pension linbitity nssociated with the District 

2015 -
1.5498% 

318,464,968 

Total $ ==31=8,=46=4=,9=68= 

District's covered-employee payroll 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position ns a percentage of the 
total pension liability 

* Presented for those yenrs tor which the information is available. 

$ 48,569,007 

0.00% 

45.59% 



DAVIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 
KENTUCKY TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Last I 0 Fiscal Y cars * 

District's contractually required contributions 

District's contributions in relation to the contractually required contributions 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

District's covered-employee payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 

* Presented for those years for which the information is available. 

i7 

2015 

$ 

$ 
===== 

$ 48,741,736 

0.00% 



Changt:.o; of Bcn~:tit T cnns 

None 

Changes of Assumptions 

DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFOR~IA rJON 
KENTUCKY TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Y .:ar Ended Junt: 30. 2015 

The calculation of the discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is dependent upon the long-tc:nn expected 
rate of return, and the municipul bond index rate. There was a change in the municipal bond index rate from the prior 
measurem~:nt date (4.27%) to the current measurement date (·U5%), resulting in a change in the discount rate from 
5.16% to 5.23%. This change in the discount rate is considered to be a change in actuarial assumptions under GASBS 
Nn (,)l 



DAVIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCIIEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF TilE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Last I 0 Fiscal Years * 

District's proportion of the net pension liability 

District's proportionate shnrc of the net pension liability 

District's covered~employee payroll 

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 

Plan tiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 

"' Presented for those years for which the information is available. 

::?:OIS 

0.651196% 

$ 21,127,000 

$ 14,894,473 

141.84% 

66.80% 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Last 10 Fiscal Yc:ars"' 

Contractually required contributions 

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contributions 

Contribution deficiency (excess} 

District's covered-employee payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 

"' Presented for those years for which the information is available. 

2015 

$ 2,656,220 

(2,656,220) 

$ 
===-== 

$ 15.032,371 

17.67% 



DAVIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETiREMENT SYSTEM 

Y car Ended June 30, 2015 

Changes of Benefit Tenns 

None 

Changes of Assumptions 

None 

I• I 



,\SSETS 
Cash and cash ~.-quivalents 
Accounts n."tcivublc: 

Other 
Due !hun other funds 

Totnl nsscts 

UABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 

futalliabilitio.'S 

Dcli.:m'tl intlows nfr~ourccs 

Fund balances: 
Rcstrid~.xt 

Assign1.'1.1 

Total fund b:t1anc~o'S 

Tutalllahllltlcs, dcrcrrcd lnOows or rcsourc:cs, 
tmd rund bnlnnc:cs 

DA VIESS COUNTY SCIIOOL DISTRICT 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON~IMOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

J unc )(), 21115 

Sp1.'tiJI 
Rcvenuc Caeital Pmjo.:cts 

s 

s 

s 

s 

SEEK 
District Citpital 
Activity Outlay 

Fund Fund 

55.683 s 

6,422 

62.105 s 

s 

62,105 

62.105 

62.1115 s 

St.'C Nuh.~ kl rtUJf-.:t.d .'illlt"fl'l\:nls 

h1 

FSPK 
Building 

Fund 

s 1.625,87(! 

$ 1,625,876 

$ 

1,625,876 

1,625.87(! 

$ 1.625,876 

Total 
Dd,t Nonmajor 

Sc.:rvicc Govcmmcntal 
Fund Funds 

s s 1,681,559 

6.422 

s s 1,687,981 

s s 

1,6!17,981 

1.61!7.91! I 

s s 1.687,1)fH 



DAVIESS COUNTY SCIIOOL DISTRICT 

COI\IBJNING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

RevcnUL'S: 
Property caxcs 
Earnings on invcscmcnts 
Other local revenue 
Stucenid 
Fcdcml aid 

Total rcvenUL'S 

Expcndicurcs: 
Instruction 
Support scrvic1.'S: 

ScuLient 
Instructional staff 
District adminiscration 
Sehoul aLiminislmtion 
Business 
Plunl npcmtion and maintenance 
Student transportation 

Community services 
New building cunslrucliun 
Building renovations I aLiditions 
Dl:bt service: 

Prindpal 
hllerL'St 
Bond issuance costs 

Total expenditures 

Excc.~s ( dcliciency) of revcnu1.'S 
nver expenditur1.'S 

Ocher tinancing suurcL'S (uses): 
Refunding bonds issu1.'t! 
Payment to bond refunding L'SCI"I>W 
PrtlCI.'CLlS frum lhe issunnceufbonds 
Discount un bunLis issu1.'11 
Premium on bonLis issued 
Operating translcrs in 
Oper.lhng tr~nsl l.! rs uut 

Tutal olhcr limmcing sources (USL'S) 

Nee dmngc in limLI balances 

Fund b;Jiancc.~. June JO, 2014 

Fund halances, June JO. :!0 IS 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Y car Emk't! June 30, 2015 

S~L'C ial Revenue 

$ 

s 

SEEK 
District Capilal 
Activity Ouclay 

Fund Fund 

s 

213,712 
1,006,957 

213,712 1,()()6,957 

IUII,S7 1 

09.764 

200.335 

13,377 1,006,')57 

( l,ll06,957) 

( 1,006,957) 

13,377 

4X,72!1 

62,1115 s 

\w N,tl-."! 111 Hn;mcfJI I.,IJhm·-.,•ls 

"' 

C'npital ProjL'Cis 

FSPK 
Building 

Fund 

$ 4,996,9()1) 
5,000 

2,545,207 

7,547,107 

3.500 

2,2:50 

5.750 

7,541,357 

(7.437,122) 

(7,437.122) 

104,235 

1,521,641 

.'S I,62S.K7f> 

Debt 
Service 

Fund 

$ 

56,935 
1!19,2SJ 

246,188 

4,490,0011 
2,156,664 

6.(>46.664 

(6,400,476) 

(>,400,4 76 

6,41)(1,476 

s 

Tutal 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

$ 4,996,90() 
5,000 

213,712 
3,609,099 

189,253 

9,013,964 

100,571 

Qt).7M 

J.SU1) 

4,49(),0()0 
2,158,914 

6,!152,749 

2.161,215 

6,401),476 
(X.444.079) 

(::!,043,603) 

117,(l 12 

1,57(1,361) 

$ l.f>!l7,'ll! I 



Apollo High 
Audubon Elementary 
Beacon Cemral 
Bums Eh.:mentary 
Bums .Middle 
College View Middle 
Country Heights Elementary 
Daviess Coumy High 
Daviess Councy Middle 
Deer Park Elemt!ntary 
East View Ekmemary 
Highland Elememary 
Me.Jdow Lands Elementary 
Sorgho Elementary 
Southem Oaks Elementary 
Tam<~rack Elementary 
\Vest Louisville Elememary 
Whitesville Elemcmary 

DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUND RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS, AND DUE TO 

Cash 
June 30, 2014 Receipts 

s 368,905 $ 944,509 
66,181 91,219 
11,493 9,000 
35,548 92,833 
97,618 278,054 

104,888 255,891 
24,180 82,714 

293,969 1,279,966 
75,454 223,430 
74,378 91,255 
31,519 90,520 
70,819 176,845 
29,639 83,129 
47,558 98,815 
30,506 70,282 
40,421 114,893 
31,486 33,647 
25,999 83,186 

$ I ,460,561 $ 4,100,188 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

Cash 
Disbursements June 30, 2015 

$ 

$ 

948,964 $ 364,450 
93,072 64,328 

9,401 11,092 
89,369 39,012 

256,819 118,853 
241,735 119,044 

87,913 18,981 
1,250,247 323,688 

241,762 57,122 
102,466 63,167 
78,468 43,571 

171,715 75,949 
84,348 28,420 

106,069 40,304 
68,391 32,397 

105,056 50,258 
36,158 28,975 
81 ,460 27,725 

4,053,413 $ 1,507,336 

5« Notc:s 10 Fi1l311Cial Stall:m~Ob 
f>.l 

Accounts Accounts 
Receivable Inventory Payable 

$ 4,002 $ 18,817 $ 26,773 

179 
1,267 

38 

2,174 3,286 7,759 

645 
2,083 

388 
70 
92 

$ 6,176 $ 26,865 $ 34,532 

Due to 
Studem Group~ 

June 30, 2015 

$ 360,496 
64,328 
11.092 
39,191 

120,120 
119,082 

18,981 
321,389 

57,122 
63,167 
44,216 
78,032 
28,420 
40,304 
32,397 
50,646 
29,045 
27,817 

$ 1,505,8-15 



D,\\'ll::ss COL:0."1"\ SCHOOL UI~'TIIICT 

STATE:IIEI'T OF SCI!OOL ACTI\'JTY FU\D RECEIP rs. OISBUR5E~I~TS, -\;1.0 DUE TO 

.-I.I'OLLO HIGII SC'IIOOL 

Y<:lt Eu.lcd Suuc 30, 201S 

Du~lo 

C»h C'a11o ACCOWII~ t\CCOWIII Slud<nl Groupo 
June 30.2014 Rcccop11 DLSbuncUk'lll! lr..n11Cn JuudO, lOIS Rc«l\ablc: ln\•1l1Uty l'3yabk JW\C 30. lOIS 

GE!\ER.-\L FL'!\D s 1.3HI ~ l~l s S6U s l.OOI s s ~ ~ ·-~ Off!('[ 10 100 13.722 1-1.665 I,OSJ I.OSJ 
STII'E.'D TIU' -I.CCOL '\'T 
.-\SIS ALL'M:\1 10 10 10 

PCPS FOU\ DA TIO\ GR.-\;-. TS 102 102 IUl 
APE:<.A!I.IS 3 •J7(o 2USI 2d1<J6 II HI 4.106 4.100 
P!>.\T TESTS 
8.\:-.Qt:ET 1.462 IIA62J 
0,\1\D l'\IFUR.\IS 107 106 106 
GR..O.Dl \TIO:O. 1.3•16 IH.'l6 ll.JUO 
PR0\1 12149 8.1162 15 4162 ~.26.! 

CO\II'uTEll USI 1..!51 1.:!51 
COSTI\GE:o.n ~2.5]6 n 11.153 IU.71i0 :!2.:!US 2.5111 ·~.61-1 

FL 'OR.\lSER ll .. US 6.421 (10.8~1 
GUD-\!\CE 5.3~5 2.d9) 3.31) (18) 4,H79 ... ~1'1 
1:-. Tt R.-.A flO\ .\L B . .O.CCAL. 
I' fR.-1. \IUR.-\L 163 309 :!UO ·~41 188 IHti 
I:O.TER£ST 2.6-10 (2.6-10) 
LOCt-5 15 55 130 1311 
:>.ECESSITI~.S ~Jo 236 236 
0\'Eil \ Ol R HEAD U74 371 I.O·U 112 615 1.661 '!.176 
I'R0J[C'T GR.-\Dl!ATIO:\ .jY.j U&S 4178 401 401 
RE\.-\JSS.-\.'\'C'E .))(o ti28 !.11-1 9)0 
C'tl.O.lll.'\'GEK 2.titil S6ti H49 3,449 
SPECI..O.L TOI'IC'~ 
STl DE:-. T E..'-.-\~1 FEE R.EI\18 10 170 IU.170 
\'IDEO YEARBOOK l.<ltiU 1.24U I.J)o;J l.ti61 l.lS61 
c \R[ER ol' no~s 
\'E.~RDOOK !6.\l()o;J 1-1.332 I ;,3!4 199 2).216 13.000 12.216 
STLDE:O.'T ASSIST-\.,C'E 2.998 HI! 1.~64 4.446 4.44(1 

... ~u· 
\\'I:IGIIT KOO~I 
TEACHER OF TilE YE..O.R A\\ .-\ ~000 HSO 1.150 I.ISU 
SluOEl\1 \'E:-:DI~G 3.016 667 1.069 2.614 38 2.652 
ADL'lT \ 'ESDII'>G o~n 1.426 1.095 197 }I 31 
.-I.DlJ Lr SCRJI' 
.-\ TIILHIC DIRECTOR %3 5)} 430 -no 
.-I.A ,\POLLOAB.-\ 8.\SKETIJAL IIJ.!:!! 16.0')1 12.11371 294 1'J.f 

BO\'S 11.-\SKrlllALL l!.lj') JI.~US 19.6-1°) 
ATIILETIC BOOSlER 3.394 97.767 62,48q (30.5251 8.147 2 .~71 11 .11•1 
.-\ rtiLETIC Bl DGET 
8.-\ScB . .O.LLLT 16.622 25.3H 128.0001 13.976 0 .-1:!:! 7..)54 
OASEBALL 156 ).494 31.611 29.310 1.349 I .H~-1 3.113 
00\'S CROSS COUKTR\ 1.2<;16 9.718 12.611 1.792 19S 19S 
80\::. CC 1.. T ti-I•J H20 14001 5.269 5.269 
GIRLS CROSS COu\ TR) 2.607 S99 2.YSS 1.523 1.1174 I.H-1 
GIRLS CCL T 467 I 466 466 
CliE!oRLE.-\OER5 l-1.605 17.4>-1 4.11-1-1 I.WS J.Y9S 
E G \LS !.1.603 IU16 18.!)11 5.56<;1 S..S6Q 
E.-\GLETTI:.S 7.S48 16JIJ3 21.422 2.006 HlS 4.63) 
rOOTI.I.-\ll 444 11.875 28.4H l'l.II8S 3.781 3.781 

5« ~ota 10 fl~l ~~&cml:aU 
(!j 



0.\\'IESS COUI\oT\ SCIIOOL DI!>IIUCT 

SH TE~IEr-.1 Of SCHOOL ACTI\'ITY fl!~O RI:CEIPl S. DISUL'R::.E!\.IE:\15, Al\0 OL'C TO 

APOLLO !II Gil SCHOOL 

Yc.tr Endtd June 30. 201 S 

OUciO 

'~"· Cash Account> A:cowus su.dcnt GIOUJl> 
June 30, 2014 tt..::.t."lfiU D&Sbutictlknt~ Tr3n~l~-n Jw•c 30. 2015 R«cov•bk hh<l\lo<)' h) able Jwoc 30. lUIS 

FIELU !\.HI' TE:-oAI\CE 
GE.'-ER.-\L A TIILETICS ~].').27 U!l 19A60 2.'117 1:!.205 (j..!US 
GIRL!> DASh'.£19.-\LL 4 IU.OUl 19..:!08 10.1114 I,OC.J 330 1.3'1] 
GIRLS GOLF 7W 440 9KO 1 .~~· IMS 1.114) 
80\'SGOLF 790 817 1,(>9~ 1.508 1.417 IAI1 
G.-\ 'IE H.SOO 17.312 t>7,1b81 
GIRLS lR.-\Ct.. 1.772 78 882 2.039 3.007 3.1107 
GIRLS TR.-\C~ L T 
SOFTUALL 90~ !6.1~0 25.501 J .O{,S ol.61! 4.<>12 
SOFTB.-\LLL T I.IU I 1,185 1.18S 
GIIU...SSOCCER 2.141 10.5118 10,•){17 2.6U7 4.439 4,4)'1 
GIRLS SOCCER L T 8S MS g; 
llO\S:.OCCER 1.652 11.640 105112 2.'173 2.!>81 1.1JK 1145 
80\ S SOCCER L T 
:.PORTS PROGR.-\..\IS S ... LES 114 111~1 
A-\ SrORTS PRUG ... \OS 1.615 MO t97SI 
SUI'L \ S fORE I~ 11.375 13.41•1 J.uu9 s;; I.UU H.739 
U SrRISG SE.~OS 'IOlJIL'E' 
S\\ l!\.1 TEAM G.1.:D 1.132 b.l46 7,160 2.Ul7 2.15:5 2.155 
IESt•:JS UxG 4.lul HS9 6,625 1.513 3.711) ),710 
OISTRICl TOLIL,E\ GIRLS 2.726 !.OC.O JU66l 
DISTRJC1 TOL R.'E\ 00\'S 
DO\'S TILKK 1.307 2H8 1.828 2..:!15 %! 982 
IIOLIO.-\ \' TOI.JIL,A!\.U:S T !.9U 3 125 140 
.-\TIILE11C \'l:\01:0.0 730 17lUI 1J 77 
llO\ S TR.o\t'l.: L f 
\'OLLE\ BALL 7..:!38 20.691 !3.~31 !>.SUI 10,1)<19 10.'111'1 
\\ RESTLI:-.G 7JIJ S60 2,1!1 J.ISO 8.901 8.902 
,-\A\ SL-\!\100\\':0. TOUR.,E\" 6.4ti0 ~.145 (!JJSI 
IU:GIO:-o.-\L 1 OUR.,[\ ·GIRLS 
SEo\IH>l ... TE TOUR..,!:.\' 
.-\ TIILE11C lJMFOR.\1 \CCOLJ:- 10 -I.UOO 4,(11{} oi UIO 
AA REGIO:" TOL IUI.E \' 00\'S 9.351 6.'170 ll.JKil 
.-\..-\ REGIO:O. TOL•R.'\cYGIRLS lU.S88 '!:!.927 1.33•1 
-\..HI. ESO.o\\ 4lE.-\!\.l!> 
A ... BORD£R 00\\ L FO 
E ... GLE CL I' ~OC('f It 
TIL-\CI.: CITY COUI\ T\' 
AAB0\1 Ll'u 1.350 76S S71 1.15. I . IS6 
,\RT CLLD 8~ " u 
BET-\ 600 10,9'17 11.243 ~73 lll7 11.!1 
CIIE:.S ~0 HUt 
OA:O.CI! BLLE 
OR. ... !\L-\ l.U.J "·~26 5.UH 0..:!6!1 2J'IS 1.l'IS 
COU:\Cll FOR E.\ CHILO 3.813 2,9)0 1..1>41 ISO 4.272 ~,lJ~ 

FF-\ o\ll\1:0.1 3..:!72 l,HI l,(i()IJ (4..:!141 
fOLA 727 7.~20 8.412 165 
rcA Sl 53 Sl 
FL TLk£ t;D OF -\.\II:IUC.o\ I'll 193 19) 
ff\ ),()()<) J.>.lol 4l.U11 4.72S li."l M92 
FCCL.-\ 141 142 141 
FILMCLL U 

S«houec!t IOfNUnr;::w' SU!.tnla'U ... 
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C;uh 
June 30,101-1 

~1\IOHEAO 

lii~IO·UL Llll\GTO~ ~I 

.\I~IDDLK£ 346 
ORCHe.TRA 49-1 
~1\10 0 IIIGDO:O. 3111 
III:ALTIII'E 3.2Sl 
.\1\ID ~ICI!\TIRE 
AfJROTC·SCIIOOL llLDGtT 7l 
SCIE'\CE IU.O<lS 
.\I~ID GILUR£.\Tit 
SPECIAL SER\'ICES 3% 
M~IO ROBERTS 1,1} 

SCJCJ.l.L STUDIES -1.1)6 
Go\ '"T CLASS DC 1 RIP ISO 
ll:CJJ-1.0 
LIDR.~R\ COP\ .\HCIU!\l 1.1!2 
LIBR.~R\ Fl:-;lS -19-1 
M.LDIO\hLAL 1.066 
POSTER PRI!\ TER 1.326 
STLDI:!\ T FEES 
LO!> r DA~l-\GED bOOKS 
BUOt..RC!\TAL 
ELI:..~R.'-1:\G IWP.~IR FI~ES 

LAP TOP PL RCIIASES 
C -\~II DR.-\\\ ER CIH:\GE 
L.-\ Tll·\.\1 SCHCILARslliP 3.782 
'\L!\!1. sCIIOL>.RSIIIP 
STE\\ ART FA~ Ill\ E.-\vLE SC• 17ij 
COU SCilOLARsiiiP 30.750 
PRuDE~ SCJIOURSIIII' 32.-lo~ 

SAnEitL\ ~CIIULARSIUP 2'>.167 
JO~Es SCI IOL-\ItSIIIP 
SO.\RI:-;G EAGlE SCIIOlARSH IH 
STEF\:-;IE :-1. 1\IC.\IOIUAL SCII IJOO 
~llRI'II\ fA~IIL\ SCIIOL\ItSI 
DISTRICT -\CTI\1T\ FI.J'\0 
E.-\GLE ltiGII TRLST ~AOl 

~ 368.<1Uj ~ 

D,\ \lESS l'OU:O.T\ SCIIOOL DISlRICT 

STATE!IIE:O.T Of SCHOOL ACTI\ITY FLNO RECEIPTS. OISOUitSE~IE:-.IS •• -\~0 OUE'TO 

Rccetpb Ot>bun.:tu.:nt• 

140 . ... o 
g,-115 7.788 

3-12 
J.S6U 7.SJ2 

700 
13.6~7 

36S 691 
1H 

6-1 
!,6110 3.-«17 

607 
178 1.010 
-IK8 711-1 

1.1138 
211 

1-15.608 6-1.9')9 
159 159 

9.992 10.0-12 

1,000 
300 .)00 

1.000 1.000 
1.340 1.500 

500 :500 
Jlij 1.1100 

500 soo 
3.2.)-19 1l.S~Q 

7.~02 

q4-1.5U'J ~ q4k,111>-1 

APOLLO lUG II SCIIOOL 

\ 'at Ended Jun<lll.lOIS 

Casll 
Tran•r= lund0.1015 

41>8 

513 
400 

1.411 

6-16 
7.7-16 

723 
36~ 

1.1-10 
6H 
836 
26S 

110.60'11 

so 

18 

IS2 
161 
1~6 

6 

~ 

!.« 1\otc:s~U Fuwa:ul SU.ICDlC'nll 

"" 

61 
29-1 

1.6-1-1 
359 

l.l9' 

19 
-I.IH 

793 
142 

S.-131 

n'l 
6SS 
278 
28 

1.3-16 

2.1100 

17~ 

30.7~1 

3:!.,626 
lij,7~1 

IJ:S 
1.300 

36-IA)(I 

nCCOUDIS 

Ro:cet••blc 

~ 4002 

Du<IO 
Accowus Student Groups 

hl\eUIOI')' P~y~blc Jwocl0.10 15 

~I 

294 
l.b-14 
JS~ 

IJ92 

111 
-I.IS4 

7~3 

1-12 
SAl! 

21'} 
~ss 

278 
111 

1.3-16 

2.800 

179 
3U,7-12 
32.&26 
28,7~1 

llS 
1.3\IU 

) IUI 7 s l6.1H s 3oUA~6 



0:\ VJESS COU:\T\ SCIIOOL DJSTRICf 

ST ATEMEN'I Of SCHOOL ACTI\'In' FUND RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS, AND DUE TO 

DA \'IE!:>S COUNTI' IIIGH SCIIOOL 

Y ~ar Ended Jun.: 30, :!015 

Due 10 
Cash Cash Accounts AI:COUOIS S1udcm Group> 

June 30, :!01~ RL"CClpiS D1sbursemcms Tr~fcrs Juno: 30, :!015 R•-cavablc !memory l'a)ablc: June 30. ~u 15 

C.L!'.ERALFUND $ 11,3~ !; s :!4,0~9 s 23,528 s 1>.512 s lb,381 s s s $ III,31H 
!:.1 UDEI'. T IIYS 126 1,641 746 3 1,0:!~ I,0:!-1 
OFFICE ~UPI'lii:S 1,993 318 5,181 10,093 7,223 7,::!:!3 
M RSE OFI-ICE 815 IllS 
J -\COB HEL \\ IG FU!'.D 
DRIVER ED FF.E 4,n5 :!,600 (2,1::!5) 
-\CTIV1H Ft:ES :!43,7~5 I-17,U~O (96,:!661 Jh9 J li9 
LAPTOP 500 635 1,8:!2 681 
~~~~C. l\L\1NTEI'.Al'.CE !:>UPP 1.:!68 1,448 1,500 1,3::!0 1,3::!11 
!> Tl•DENf FEESIS:!~ 11,0~6 50 3,!1-11 :!,lito IU,IU5 IO.IU5 
TE:\ .. TBOO~S STATE Ill I 355 174 
:>IIELTOro. .. \\ All\1:\RT 751 6::! 689 6~9 

\El'<DING 1,6'13 7::!::! 951 ::!7 !17S 
FACUUY \'END11'-G :!,10:! 1,696 3,37!1 . .J2o 266 6:!6 
ST -\FfliLT'I FUI'.D 33ll 8 .... II 1.115 
I'ICTUR£ COMl\IISSIO!'. 541 4,890 (5,431) 
MAG ALINE 6,731 21.-m :!U,078 (:!,g76) 5,:!5-1 5,:!5-1 
NICh.EL \\ AR ;,,397 6,ll30 5,69::! (146) 6,389 6,3119 
:\ T11LETICS GI:NERAL 71.1,361 36.~ (-1:!,357) 1.756 1.751> 
G.\:\IE OFfiCIALS 
-\TIILETIC' Tll.-\INING 3.-~lb 3,-116 
A IIILETIC OOUSTERS 1,999 56,60:! 37,0S7 (19,51-1) :!,OW J,::!SCI 5,:!;,(1 
OA~EilALL !:>IGN~ :!50 :!50 ::!5!1 
BASEBAll 1,109 9.7% 1:!,313 3,1!59 :!,451 2,451 
OA:>I:IHLL .. DISTRJC'T TOUK.N ~.::!5!1 3,119 (1,139) 
BASEB.\LL lOURNAMEN f 
llh.BALL REGIONAL TOURN 
B.\SKETB . .\ll CAMP GIRl~ 
0~ TOUMAMl:NT .. GII!.L!> ~.~ I lli :!:!5 
13,\SKETBALL .. BOYS 1,!11!5 15,li97 10.18::! 3,711 1,:!11 1,111 
BOYS BKB TOUR]'. AMENT 
BASh.ETBALL·GIRLS 1,99:! 11,!115 19,+10 5,813 180 11!0 
0.-\~1\.El BALL CAl\11' I:IUYS 
Blo..BGYl\1 ~IG:O.~ 
CC 1 R IN\'ITA TIONALS blSI -1,151 l,l!lo g; 3,731 3,731 
:...c BOYS 6,650 5,066 6,169 ::!,!1::!7 8,374 6,37-1 
:\('GIRLS -1,0::!6 6,608 1>,716 1,675 5,533 5.533 
TR.\CI\. GIKLS 3,8N 3::!::! ::!,383 3,::!71 5,084 5,01)-1 
80\\l.I~G 6o5 -1,6 11 3,101 153) ::!.0:!::! ::!,0::!:! 
CIIEI:RLEADERS 6,3lSJ :S:S,I01 60,91>3 1)04) ~3 2::!3 
1 RACK-BO'r'S :!,071 331 3,1311 3,::!811 ::!,551 1,552 
FIELD 1\IAI]'. TENA!'.CE 

See ~6to fin .. lnnJI St~ca.nmu. 
69 



Cash 
JundO, ~01~ 

FOOTBALL BOOSTERS SoO 
FOOlUALL 3 
FUOTUALL PL-\ \OFF 
GOLI- TOURN.-\1\IENT 
GOLFBO\S 6~::! 

GULF GIRLS 39~ 

INTRAI\IUKAL SPORTS 3ll3 
I'Al'lTIII:Rl!TIES 5,l5~ 

SUCCI:.R UOYS SUB SECTION< 
SUCCEil TOURNAI\IE!I. T 
SOCCER BOYS -1:!5 
SOCCI:R TOURr-. GIRLS 
SUCClR GIRLS 5~5 

SOCC(R DISTRICT TOURN 
~OFT BALL 6,7!!~ 

SOITBALL TOURNEY 
BASEBALL I'LOiliDA 
~OCCEit SIGNS-BOYS 2.153 
STATE TOURNAMENT E:\P 
llAl\1 L-\UREN.CANCER AWA 2,5-15 
S\\'11\11\111\G 1,7'&1! 
SOFTBALL OJ~ TRJCT TUURN 
TENNIS BOYS 9uo 
TENNIS GIRLS :!OS 
\'OLLE\ UALL :!.,690 
VOLLEYBAll fOURNAI\IENT 
~WIM-Ctn·.coUNTY MEET 
\\'!lEST LING 60 
\\ RLSTLI!I.G TOURN. 
CROSS COUNTRY REGIOr-.AU 
:-IICH -\EL C ABL£ FUND 3,059 
REGIONAL GOLF 
\OLLEY BALL DISTKICT 
ANIME CLUB 73 
ARfCLUO 153 
B[TA CLUB 7'1'1 
CIIRISTIAN STU. UNION 
<.HESSCLUO ::!:!9 
ROilOTICS 1,73::! 
DRAM.-\ CLUB 3,:!29 
DR.\1\J,\. ~IUSIC STOR.-\GE :!99 
FDL\ :!.,1!86 
FCCL\ 1,0:!0 

DA \'lESS COU:-o;n· SCHOOL OlSTIUCf 

STATEMENT OF SCHOOL AC1Win· FUND RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS, AND DUE TO 

lt..'1Xljl1:1 

1~.736 

19,5!19 

3.~uo 

411 
600 
975 

t.7,91o 

~::!7 
1:!.7 

3,968 
38,-19:!. 

8,363 
1,)30 
-1,396 

17,802 
619 

9,26~ 

-lo5 

130 
1,229 
6,407 

6,'150 

::!,0~ 

1,\IUO 
3,322 

71!2 
1,5-17 

"19\1 
1,91-1 

360 
nu 
:!58 

DAVIESS COUNW HIGH SCHOOL 

DlsburscmL"Ois 

13,19::! 
39,609 

1,963 
4,377 
1,:!27 
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2')lJ,OHJ 
Sp~"Ci;ol Euucatiun Cluster. 

S~-cial Education • Orancs tu Scatcs: 
IDEA, Part U l!-1 H27.\ 3:!10002-ll 1 3373 500 
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Title I St3tc Ato~'llcy l'ro!:fUm ror Negk'Ctcd and Ochnqucnt 
Cluldrcn :mtl Yuuth 

rille I State Agency Pn•llr:lm lor N.:giL'Cicd anti O.:linqucnt 
C'luh.lrcn :md Yt:uth 
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~-1.013 
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~39,6-11 

JIJA -14,33-1 
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l'he accomp:mying schetlul~ nf e.\(l<.!nditun:s of t~'llcrnl ~wards indudt:s 1he falcrnl ~;rnnt nuivity <>I' the Oa\'it:.,s County Schlllll Distri~t untlcr 
prll!,'r.lm., of the li:dcml ~;o~t:mmL'III lhr the year t:ndcd June .lO, 21115. I he inlhnnatiun 10 this Schedule is prcs~ntL'\1 tn ncconlant:e with the 
rclJuircm<:nt! nfOI\.10 Circular A·l JJ, ..lmlils <>I Sttii<'S, Luml Gtll~'l'llmmts mul Ntm·l'm/it Orl(mu:tllltms. lkc.1usc the Sch~'\Jule pR::it:nls <mly a 
sclL-.;t~'ll pun ion of the opcrntion5 nl'tht: District, it IS not inlcnd~'ll tu, .m~ •lues nnt, present I he lin~ndal positinn, ch:m~::cs in net positinn. ur L"::sh 
llmvs of the District. 

Note 0: 5ummary nt'Sit:nilk:ml .\~L-ounting l'nlicil.'ll 

Note C. 

hpt:nditurcs •~p.•11~'11 un the Sch~'\lule are rcpmiL'\1 on the accrual ha5is of accounting. Such c~pcnditun:s nrc rc"'IJlOil~'ll ll•llowinc the cnsl 
principles contained in OMR Cin:ular A·ll7, Cull l'rilldpi<'S {nr Stull!, f.uml. 111111 ltulhm l i'i/ml lhnwmllt'IIIS. \\herein certain IYflL"S of 
c~pcnditurcs nrc nul allo\\nhlc or arc limit•'\J us to reimbursement. 

l'o<Klllonation 

Numnoudary assistance li~r the F<Ml<ll>istnhution l'm101':1m is r.:pmtcd in rhc sdiL'tlulc at the l"ir market \'aluc ufthc cuuunotliti.:s rL'Ct:hL'tl. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Members of the Board of Education 
Daviess County School District 
Owensboro, Kentucky 

Kentucky State Committee for School District Audits 
Frankfort, Kentucky 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Daviess County School District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic 
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 9, 2015. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
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Daviess County School District - 2 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, Continued 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain 
deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs 
as Finding 2015-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

In addition, the results of our tests disclosed no material instances of noncompliance with 
specific statutes or regulations identified in the Kentucky Public School District's Audit Contract and 
Requirements prescribed by the Kentucky State Committee for School District Audits. 

Daviess County School District's Response to Findings 

The District's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The District's response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit ofthe financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Owensboro, Kentucky 
October 9, 20 IS 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH OMB CIRCULAR A~ 133 

Members of the Board of Education 
Daviess County School District 
Owensboro, Kentucky 

Kentucky State Committee for School District Audits 
Frankfort, Kentucky 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Daviess County School District's (District) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of the District's major federal programs for the year ended June 
30, 2015. The District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements oflaws, regulations, contracts, 
and grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District's major federal 
programs based on our audit ofthe types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with 
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination ofthe District's 
compliance. 
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Daviess County School District - 2 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

ln our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performi!lg our audit of compliance, we considered the District's internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with OMS Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a fedeml program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the tirst paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
ofOMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Owensboro, Kentucky 
October 9, 20 lS 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Year Ended June 30, 20 15 

A. Summary of Auditor's Results 

l. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the 
Daviess County School District (District). 

2. A significant deficiency disclosed during the audit of the financial statements is reported 
in the Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Perfonned in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are 
reported. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements ofthe District, which 
would be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 
were disclosed during the audit. 

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs were 
reported in the Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance For Each Major Program 
and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133. No 
material weaknesses are reported. 

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the District 
expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs. 

6. As indicated in Part C of this schedule, there were no audit findings that are required to 
be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) ofOMB Circular A-133. 

7. The programs tested as major programs were: 

84.011 Migrant Education- State Grant Program 

Special Education Cluster: 
84.027 IDEA, Part B 
84.173 IDEA Preschool 

84.367 Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 

8. The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $311,831. 

9. The District was detennined to be a low-risk auditee. 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2015 

8. Findings - Financial Statements Audit 

Significant Deficiency: 

Finding 20 15-001 
Segregation of Duties 

Due to a limited number of personnel employed in the accounting area, incompatible work 
functions are often performed by the same individual and a high degree of trust is necessitated. 
Specifically, bookkeepers at individual schools perform most accounting functions for the 
activity funds and after school program directors have responsibility for student attendance 
records and for billing and collection of student fees. This lack of segregation of duties 
increases the opportunity for misappropriation of District assets, and weakens the District's 
ability to detect possible misappropriations. 

Recommendation 

Job responsibilities within the accounting area should be continually reviewed and, where 
feasible, duties should be switched to provide better segregation ofincompatible work functions. 
For the after school program, revenues should be reviewed analytically using attendance data. 

Management Response 

In the area of school bookkeepers and after school program directors, it is not practical or cost 
effective to hire additional staff to separate accounting functions at all locations. Adequate 
internal control procedures as defined by local policy and state law are available and enforced in 
these areas. Fidelity bond coverage was carried during the fiscal year. 

C. Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit 

None 



DA VIESS COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

Year Ended June 30,2015 

There were no audit findings relative to federal awards reported in the schedule of findings and 
questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Il l 
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MANAGEMENT LETTER 

Members of the Board of Education 
Daviess County School District 
Owensboro, Kentucky 

Kentucky State Committee for School District Audits 
Frankfort, Kentucky 

ln planning and perfonning our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the 
Daviess County School District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the District's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe District's internal control. 

However, during our audit we became aware of deficiencies in internal control other than 
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses and matters that are opportunities for strengthening 
internal controls and operating efficiency. This letter summarizes our comments and suggestions 
regarding these matters. A separate report dated October 9, 20 15, contains our report on a significant 
deficiency in the District's internal control. This letter does not affect our report dated October 9, 2015, 
on the financial statements of the District. 

FY 2015 Comments 

Activity Funds: 
Findings noted and frequency of occurrence are as follows: 

Deposits: 
Deposits were not timely made ( 1 ); 
A check included in a deposit was omitted from the treasurer's receipt (I); 
A deposit was posted to an account that differed from that recorded on the 

treasurer's receipt ( l ); 
The Multiple Receipt Fonn was dated by the person remitting money several 

days before date of the treasurer's receipt ( l ); 
Disbursements: 

Invoices were not always footed and cancelled to prevent duplicate payment (I); 
A voided check and the related supporting documentation was not retained in the 

files ( 1 ); 
Transfers: 

Transfers were not recorded on a timely basis (3); 
The amount of a transfer was recorded incorrectly (I); 

Athletics: 
Ticket sales receipts were turned in several days after the event (I); 
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Daviess County School District - 2 

Inventory: 
Inventory reconcilements were improperly prepared ( 1 ); 
A year-end count and reconciliation was not perfonned tor one of the inventories 

( l); 
Other: 

A copy of the most recent Red Book was not on file (I). 

We recommend that Activity Fund bookkeepers be reminded of the importance of adhering to 
the "Red Book" and performing generally accepted practices which enhance internal control for the 
District. 

Management Response: 

Management conducted a Redbook training with all school bookkeepers and school 
administrators in July 2013. Management continues to provide training and updates on current 
Redbook issues. Management will communicate the Redbook audit findings with all school 
bookkeepers and administrators and instruct staff regarding preventative measures schools must make to 
alleviate reoccurrence of Redbook findings. 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have 
already discussed the comments and suggestions with District personnel, and we will be pleased to 
discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or 
to assist you in implementing the recommendations. 

Status of FY 2014 Comments 

Activity Funds: 
Findings noted and frequency of occurrence are as follows: 

Bank reconcilements: 
Reconcilements were not always initialed by the preparer and the principal (I); 

Deposits: 
Deposit slips were not always initialed by second person (I); 
Deposits were not timely made (I); 
Physical receipt number did not match the number recorded in the software ( l ). 

Disbursements I Payables: 
No supporting documentation for a disbursement was available ( l ); 
A purchase of athletic supplies did not adhere to the bid ( 1 ). 

Transfers: 
Transfer form lacked the principal's signature (2). 

Athletic ticket sales: 
Unable to reconcile to the ticket number on a prior ticket report ( 1 }. 

Inventory: 
Inventory was not recorded at correct pricing (I); 
Clerical errors were noted on the inventory report {I). 

Status: See FY 2015 Comments above for findings resulting from current year audit 
procedures related to the Activity Funds. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and usc of management, the Board 
of Education, the Kentucky Department of Education, and others within the organization, and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these speci tied parties. 

Owensboro, Kentucky 
October 9, 20 l5 
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